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d. Stuart James Testimony.

Petitioner incorporates pages 169-170 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Itis clear from the record that the State spent as much,
if not more, time with this defense witness than defense counsel and was able to use
the failure of defense counsel to prepare this witness against Petitioner. The failure of
defense counsel to prepare was not the product of strategy, but was “so objectively
unreasonable” so as to “constitute unreasonable performance regardless of the reason
for the omissions.” This failure is evident from the record. Specifically, Stuart James
is, and was billed, at trial as the pre-eminent expert on blood-spatter. Yet due to the
limited amount of time that was spent preparing him for trial, his testimony was
essentially useless, as it did not, as with Trahan and Eisel, support the sole defense
presented at trial, self-defense. Further, he was not allowed to see the actual exercise
bike in the same condition as the State’s experts were able to view it. The bike had
blood drop and smear evidence on it.

e. Psychological Experts Testimony.

Petitioner in incorporates pages 170-172 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though full set forth herein. This case creates the unique situation where the
defendant was not only a licensed attorney but, despite not being a criminal defense
lawyer, was consulted during the pre-trial preparation of the case and during trial for
his input as both. Here, Petitioner is told by defense counsel that he needs to expend
money to hire experts in the field of psychology, as they will assist the defense in a
particular manner. Petitioner agrees to this in reliance upon the advice of his criminal
defense attorneys since Petitioner was a Family Law practitioner. Petitioner therefore
consented to and provided the approval for the funds in order to accomplish this task.
Then at trial, inexplicably, defense counsel decided not to use the experts in the

manner previously agreed upon. Petitioner was not consulted about this change of
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1 [ plans and obviously did not consent to this tactic.
The Ninth Circuit has repeatedly held that defense counsel, in a murder trial,

was ineffective where there was some evidence of the defendant’s mental illness in the

SO N

record, but counsel failed to investigate it as a basis for a mental defense to first degree

murder. See Jennings v. Woodford, 290 F.3d 1006, 1010, 1014-16 (9" Cir. 2002)

(holding that where “trial counsel failed adequately to investigate and present

~l O

considerable evidence regarding petitioner’s psychological and family history that might
8 || have . . . defeated the jury’s findings of the requisite intent for first degree murder in
9 || the guilt phase,” defendant was denied effective assistance of counsel); Seidel v.
10 | Merkle, 146 F.3d 750, 755-56 (9™ Cir. 1998) (reasoning that counsel was prejudicially
11 || ineffective for failing to conduct reasonable investigation of guilt phase mental defenses
[2 || where there was evidence in record that defendant had previous psychiatric treatment

13 || in jail); Bloom v. Calderon, 132 F.3d 1267, 1277 (9" Cir. 1997) (“The complete lack of

14 || effort by defense trial counsel to obtain a psychiatric expert until days before trial,
15 [| combined with counsel’s failure to adequately prepare their expert and then present
16 || him as a trial witness, was constitutionally deficient performance.”); See also Sanders,
17 || 21 F.3d at 1456 (holding that trial counsel was deficient during guilt phase for “fail[ing]
18 || to conduct even the minimal investigation that would have enabled him to come to an
19 | informed decision about what defense to offer,” and that “[d]escribing [counsel]’s
20 || conduct as ‘strategic’ strips that term of all substance”). This is particularly true where
21 || the defense that was presented at trial was weak or meritless. See, e.g., Jennings, 290
22 || F.3d at 1016.

23 Petitioner was observed as being “catatonic” on the night of the incident (AA Vol.
24 || 8, p. 54). There was such an issue regarding his mental state that the State filed a
25 || pre-trial writ to compel a psychological exam of Petitioner, and the issue was litigated
26 || before the Nevada Supreme Court, including en banc oral arguments as well as amicus
27 || curiae briefs submitted by non-parties. See, State v. District Court (Centofanti), 118
28 [| Nev. 1148, 106 P.3d 1260 (Nev. 2002). [State’s Petition to compel pre-trial
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psychological examination was denied.] It was further emphasized (improperly) in the
State’s Closing about defense counsel’s failure to tie the catatonia to any aspect of the
defense, despite the fact that the facts, documents, evidence were there. This is not
a question of “strategy” but is “objectively unreasonable” when, as the Ninth Circuit
noted, “the defense that was presented at trial was weak or meritless.” See, e.g.,
Jennings, 290 F.3d at 1016.

Here, the decision not to use the psychiatric experts was clearly ineffectiveness.
As the State improperly commented in Closing that the defense did not present any
testimony which attempted to link the “catatonia,” memory loss and post-traumatic
stress to any of the elements which would constitute a defense. Nor were the experts
used to attack the credibility or admissibility of Quito’s testimony. The defense
counsel’s decision not to use psychiatric experts tended to further undermine the
defense, counsel and Petitioner’s credibility.

f. Experts Not Called or Used at Trial.

Petitioner incorporates pages 172-178 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Respondent’s repeated claims and citations to Ryne and
Molina are misplaced. Respondent further attempts to distinguish the case law cited
by Petitioner without much success. Petitioner has met his burden to show the failure
by defense trial counsel to call certain witnesses which materially prejudiced him at
trial. Once defense counsel made representations on the record, not only pretrial, but
in the Opening Statement to the jury, the threshold of “bare allegations” is clearly not
only met but surpassed. And for Respondent to claim a “multitude of experts were
called by the defense to garner support for the defense theory of the case” none of those
called by defense counsel actually testified in a supportive manner. The failure to call
the necessary experts that both the client, the court and the jury were told were going

to be called, during the defense Opening Statement, made the defense performance a

r1r77
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farce that entitles Petitioner to the relief he is seeking. '*

As for Respondent’s passing argument regarding whether or not Las Vegas
Metropolitan Police Office Lt. Franks would have been allowed to testify at all, perhaps
that answers the question as to why, three years after allegedly being retained by
defense counsel he was not available at trial. See pp. 185-189 of Memorandum of
Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-
Conviction). Petitioner was never provided proof that Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Lt.
Franks was actually retained and agreed to testify against the State and on Petitioner’s
behalf. What was the basis for defense counsel’s promise to the jury during his
Opening Statement that Franks would testify on Petitioner’s behalf? Shouldn’t Ms.
Navarro have known whether Lt. Franks would be allowed by the Las Vegas
Metropolitan Police Department to testify?

Since Franks became “suddenly unavailable” why did the defense not request a
continuance of the trial? Why did they not seek another expert in his area of
expertise? Why did they simply abandon this whole aspect of the defense’s case? Why
did they not have Frank’s position on testifying settled long before the start of the trial
in which defense trial counsel promised the jury in Opening Statement that Franks
would testify. It is clear that defense counsel had not been in contact recently with Lt.
Franks before the trial. Defense counsel did not know Franks was going to be
unavailable because he was apparently not contacted by defense counsel. If Franks
had not committed to testify, how could defense counsel promise the jury that he
would?

As to the remaining experts, no valid explanation was ever provided why they
were not called or utilized, especially in light of the failure of all the experts that were

called to support the improbable defense theory of self-defense.

"“In the areas of Toxicology, Karate/Martial Arts, Self-Defense, Blood Spatter
and Lt. Franks. See pages 173-174 of the Memorandum of Points and Authorities
in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).
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N. Counsel was Ineffective in His Procurement of Witnesses at Trial.

Petitioner incorporates pages 178-195 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. When defense trial counsel is made aware that a
potential witness may provide testimony beneficial to the defense, counsel’s failure to
interview the potential witness is constitutionally ineffective assistance. Ramonez v,
Berghuis, 490 F.3d 482 (6™ Cir. 2007). The failure to interview key defense witnesses
is objectively unreasonable” under Strickland. Constitutionally effective counsel must
develop trial strategy in the true sense—not what bears a false label of ‘strategy’-based
on what investigation reveals witnesses will actually testify to, not based on what
counsel guesses they might say in the absence of a full investigation.” Ramonez v.

Berghuis, 490 F.3d 482, 489 (6™ Cir. 2007). Davis v. Booker 594 F.Supp. 2d 802, 816

(E.D. Mich. 2009). This only makes sense.

Respondent’s argument fails as they cannot even correctly identify Emeline
Eisenman as the mother of the decedent and not her sister. They cannot escape the
fact that the defense counsel’s failure to call her as a witness was not strategy but
merely the failure to subpoena her as a witness. This failure is inexcusable
considering the incredible amount of time spend both pre-trial and in Opening
Statement by defense counsel who stressed the importance of her testimony to the
jury. See pp. 178-195 of Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction); also see AA Vol. 1, pp. 40-43.
This failure also left the defense without any options, such as seeking a continuance
of the trial to try to locate her. See, Streitenberger v. Sheriff, Clark County, 93 Nev.
689, 572 P.2d 931 (1977).

As to the balance of the remaining witnesses not called or used, considering that
counsel failed to secure their attendance by serving them with subpoenas, all the same

arguments apply with equal force and effect as with Ms. Eisenman.

177077
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0. Defense Counsel was Ineffective During the Course of Trial.
a. Juror Misconduct.

Petitioner incorporates page 43-58 and 195 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Respondent cites again to Ennis as support for the
proposition that “it’s okay if you did not object if would not have been upheld or
provided the basis for appeal “anyway,” an argument, which in this context is
irrelevant and improper. First, Respondent failed to either obtain or review the
transcripts of the Motion for New Trial. If he had, he would have seen that the
assertion that “there is no showing that a juror even wore this supposed shirt” (shirt
with writing on it — “What does a killer look like”)is belied by the record wherein Clark
Peterson of the Clark County District Attorney’s Office admitted that the shirt was
worn by a juror, was seen by other jurors and that the offending juror was instructed
by the bailiff regarding it (AA Vol. 8, p. 223-224). It is also mentioned in the Order of
Affirmance by the Nevada Supreme Court, and is part of the record on appeal. (See
Order of Affirmance, Exhibit 4 to Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support
of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).

While relying upon the factual “mistake,” Respondent claims an objection would
have been futile, which is incorrect. The same argument applies to the sleeping jurors,
as affidavits were submitted and evidence received at the Motion for New Trial and
mentioned in the Order of Affirmance confirming that jurors were in fact sleeping
during trial. Had defense trial counsel noted these instances and made a record of
them, a timely Motion for a New Trial could have been decided on the merits instead
of being denied on the basis of the failure to file within seven days which was caused
by defense trial counsel’s untimely disappearance after the verdict.

In the case of Virgil v. Dretke, 446 F.3d 598 (C.A.5(Tex.) 2006), the Fifth Circuit

noted:

/17717
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Here, we are confronted with a situation in which, due to counsel’s failure,
two persons, each expressly stating that they were unable to serve as fair
and impartial jurors, found themselves seated on the petit jury that
convicted Virgil and sentenced him to thirty years in prison. We are
required to presume “that the judge or jury acted according to law,” yet the
law mandates a juror willing to “lay aside his impression or opinion and
render a verdict based on the evidence presented in court.” That did not
occur here. Given the fundamental nature of the impartial jury and the
consistent line of Supreme Court precedent enforcing it, we must conclude
that “the result of [Virgil’s trial] is unreliable because of a breakdown in the
adversarial process that our system counts on to produce just results.”
Such an unreliable result dictates the conclusion that Virgil’s defense was
prejudiced under Strickland by the sitting of Sumlin and Sims, as each
unequivocally expressed that they could not sit as fair and impartial jurors,
and the state court’s decision to the contrary cannot stand. As we stated
in United States v. Nell, “The jury box is a holy place.” Our criminal justice
system is predicated on the notion that those accused of criminal offenses
are innocent until proven guilty and are entitled to a jury of persons willing
and able to consider fairly the evidence presented in order to reach a
determination of guilt or innocence.

Id. at 612-613.
As the Ninth Circuit has observed:

In Dyer, the juror on voir dire in a murder prosecution answered “no” to
queries about whether she or any of her relatives had ever been the victim
of any type of crime, and whether she or any of her relatives had ever been
accused of any offense other than traffic cases. 151 F.3d at 972. The trust
was that the juror’s brother had been shot and killed six years earlier, and
her husband was in jail. Id. at 972-973. We concluded that the juror
plainly lied, and that her lies gave rise to an inference that she chose to
conceal important facts in order to serve as a juror and pass judgment on
Dyer’s sentence. Id. at 982; See also Green v. White, 232 F.3d 671, 676 (o™
Cir. 2000) (presuming bias when the jury foreperson in a murder trial lied
about his own prior felony conviction on a written jury questionnaire and
in voir dire because the “pattern of lies, inappropriate behavior, and
attempts to cover up his behavior introduced ‘destructive uncertainties’into
the fact-finding process” (quoting Dyer, 151 F.3d at 983)).

Fields v. Brown, 503 F.3d 755, 769 (C.A.9 (Cal.) 2007).

These were the situations that occurred during Petitioner’s trial. There were
instances of having a convicted felon as a juror, sleeping jurors, a juror who wore a
shirt that said, “Do you know what a murderer looks like” and another who conducted
his own experiment with a firearm. Defense trial counsel had the opportunity to
properly challenge all of these instances of juror misconduct, but abjectly failed to
know, understand and apply Nevada law, and allowed the 7-day period in which to do

so, to lapse.
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Petitioner now seeks an evidentiary hearing as to issue of the various instances
of juror misconduct, and needs to determine when the State became aware of them,
at or during trial.'® Petitioner is entitled to an evidentiary hearing since he has

asserted a colorable claim for relief because he has never been given the opportunity

to develop a factual record on this claim. See, e.g. Siripongs v. Calderon, 35 F.3d
1308, 1310 (9™ Cir. 1994).

It should be noted that the trial counsel did not attempt to contact Petitioner
regarding any of the issues of juror misconduct until well after the seven day period
for filing a motion for new trial, thus prejudicing Petitioner’s ability to bring what would
have been a valid Motion for New Trial. This constituted ineffective assistance of
counsel.

b. Prosecutorial Misconduct.

Petitioner incorporates pages 196-202 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authoriﬁes in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Petitioner has made a prima facie showing, with
sufficient references to both the record and the resulting prejudice to warrant relief on
this ground. Specifically, Petitioner has set forth all of the instances in the record as
to the use of the words “murder,” “victim” and “crime scene,” as well as the use of the

»

terms “assassination,” “assassination shots,” “mafia hit man,” “execution” and “coup
de grace” which is undisputed by the State.

The remaining prosecutorial misconduct can be summarized as follows:

1. Failing to provide complete and full discovery and to provide what was turned
over in a timely fashion;

2. Telling potential and actual witnesses for the State not to speak with defense

counsel or investigators;

*See Exhibit 4 to Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction), Order of Affirmance, p. 5 (t-shirt), pp.
6-7 (felony status), p. 8 (firearm experiment).
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3. Insinuating that Petitioner was untruthful and presenting false evidence from
Scott Sessions and employees from the daycare center to the jury;

4. Suborning perjury with regards to Quito’s testimony and then presenting the
testimony to the jury;

5. Canvassing Petitioner, which was used as the basis to improperly disqualify
Petitioner’s counsel Dan Albregts;

6. Asking for and receiving permission to conduct a canvass of Petitioner with
regards to whether or not he would admit he was the shooter and had consented to the
defense of seif-defense;

7. Presenting the false testimony of Tricia Miller which was the product of
coaching and which was false;

8. Making false representations to the Court with regard to the juror misconduct
which should have resulted in Petitioner being granted a new trial.

These instances of misconduct, viewed individually or collectively, establish that
Petitioner’s due process rights and right to a fair trial and competent counsel were
violated and entitle him to a new trial. The failure by defense trial counsel to object or
to seek other available and appropriate relief was “objectively unreasonable” and
constitutes ineffective assistance.

c. Questioning of Francisco “Quito” Sanchez.

Petitioner incorporates pages 202-218 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Respondent stops short of quoting the full ruling of the
Court back in 2001. At that time, the Court left open the possibility of excluding the
testimony of Quito in its entirety after defense counsel had the opportunity to review
all of the statements and recorded interviews of Quito which had been conducted by
the State (both the prosecutor and the police) (AA Vol. 1, p. 192 at pp. 213-221).
Defense trial counsel neither reviewed this information nor filed a motion to enforce the

court’s orcler regarding this discovery.
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Since Quito was a minor and the only so called eyewitness to testify as to alleged
threats made by Petitioner to the decedent on December 5, 2000, the introduction of
this evidence, in any format, was extremely prejudicial to Petitioner and to his defense
at trial.’ This is compounded by the further failure by defense trial counsel to secure
the attendance at trial and testimony of his grandmother, Emeline Eisenman, who
counseled Quito to lie about his recollections for trial and to secure her testimony
thereon. The defense should have filed a motion to suppress and subpoenaed Emeline
Eisenman to testify about suborning this perjury.

The Court should note that Quito’s testimony evolved from having told police
initially and in a subsequent interview on December 5, 2000, that he neither heard or
saw anything, to then, over time and apparently after coercive coaching by Emeline
Eisenman, to that he both heard threats and saw a weapon being pointed and the
trigger pulled, to he was told to lie and lied about seeing a gun but did hear threats (AA
Vol. 1, pp. 185-186 at 184-186). Defense trial counsel made no effort to utilize
available defense experts to challenge the veracity of Quito’s testimony, despite having
them available. Allowing Quito to testify this way was no different than allowing the
testimony of Joseph Brown in the Tabish'” case, which, in that case, provided the
basis, in part for the reversal of the convictions.

Furthermore, there was no valid strategy behind not seeking the exclusion of
Quito’s testimony entirely. Once Petitioner’s counsel learned Quito’s testimony was the
product of taint and coercion, and they failed to secure the attendance of the person
who allegedly told Quito to lie, and failed to secure his interviews, and the written and

recorded statements, there was no reason to allow him to testify since the impact of

'61t should be noted that Tricia Miller also testified to the threats, which were
and are inadmissible hearsay under Crawford. She was not even present at the
time that the alleged threats were made. She was told by another about them.

"“Take [defendant] out of the will if she doesn’t kill me tonight. If I'm dead
you’ll know what happened”; See, Tabish v. State, 119 Nev. 293, 72 P.3d 584
(2003).
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this event would weigh against and not for Petitioner. It was objectively unreasonable
not to seek to exclude his testimony by filing a Motion to Suppress or a Motion in
Limine.

As other courts have found, where the reliability of an identification by a child
witness is at issue, a court also should consider the child’s age. See, e.g., Haliym v.
Mitchell, 492 F.3d 680, 706-07 (6" Cir. 2007) (seven year old age of witness “counsels
against a finding of reliability. Studies show that children are more likely to make
mistaken identifications than are adults”) (citations and quotations omitted); Bryant

v. Commonwealth, 10 Va.App. 421, 425, 393 S.E.2d 216 (1990) (“The witness’

youthfulness is obviously a factor to be considered under the [Manson v. Brathwaite|
totality of circumstances test.”).

A reasonable and objective evaluation of the “totality of the circumstances” would
conclude that Quito’s testimony was not reliable at all. He admitted, at a pretrial
hearing, that he had been coached by his grandmother to lie (AA Vol. 1, p. 190 at pp.
202-203). Therefore, had Petitioner’s defense counsel made a Motion to Suppress or
Motion in Limine, it is reasonably probable that the trial court, faithfully applying the
principles set forth in Supreme Court case law, would have concluded not only that the
interview procedure was suggestive but also that Quito’s testimony was not sufficiently

reliable to warrant its introduction at trial. See, Qlivia v. Hedgpeth, 600 F.Supp. 2d

1067, 1083 (C.D.Cal. 2009). The exclusion of his testimony would have severely
impaired the State’s ability to prove premeditation.

Finally, this is the same situation that presented itseif to the court in Tucker v.
Prelesnik. Trial counsel failed to obtain and use, at trial, medical records of an assault
victim which would have impeached his ability to remember. He also failed to obtain
and use evidence of earlier, contradictory statements made by the victim, and failed
to request a continuance when he learned that the victim would testify at trial.
Because defense counsel knew that he was unprepared for trial and had not obtained

critical evidence of which he was aware, the Court found him to be ineffective. Tucker
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v. Prelesnik, 181 F.3d 747, 755 (C.A.6 (Mich.) 1999}.

Therefore, the failure to obtain from the State, including the police, district
attorney’s office, and guardian at litem, all of the interviews with Quito, which would
have impeached not only his testimony, but that of the decedent’s sister, Lisa
Eisenman, and mother, Emeline Eisenman, was objectively unreasonable and
constituted ineffective assistance of counsel.

d. Presentation of Petitioner’s Testimony at Trial.

Petitioner incorporates pages 122-132 and 218-221 of the Memorandum of
Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-
Conviction) as though fully set forth herein. As the Ninth Circuit held, a trial attorney
mistakenly causing a defendant to waive a privilege can constitute prejudicial error
entitling a defendant to relief for the ineffective assistance of counsel. Edwards v.
Lamarque, 439 F.3d 504 (9™ Cir. 2005). As the Court further explained in a
subsequent decision on the case:

Defendant’s counsel mistakenly waived Defendant’s marital privilege,
misunderstood the law, and did not make a “tactical” decision. The state

court unreasonably found the decision to have been “tactical.”

Edwards v. Lamarque, 475 F.3d 1121, 1129 (C.A.9 (Cal.) 2007).

As already stated, Petitioner was provided with ineffective assistance of counsel
on the issue of his attorneys’ advice that he “must” testify in order to present the
defense of self-defense, which is incorrect. See, Petty, supra. This resulted in
Petitioner mistakenly waiving his right to remain silent under the Fifth Amendment
since he was misadvised on both the law of self-defense and the law of the case.
(Judge Gibbons had already stated a self-defense case could be presented without
Petitioner having to testify).

This was further compounded by the failure of defense trial counsel to properly
prepare Petitioner to testify and then eliciting on his direct, during the trial, testimony
which contradicted the evidence that defense counsel himself voluntarily provided to

the State.
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1 As the Ninth Circuit (dissenting opinion) recently observed in the case of
2 [| Pinholster v. Ayers, 525 F.3d 742 (C.A.9 (Cal.) 2008):

3 Pinholster’s counsel advised him to testify to a defense that was not only
implausible and nonsensical, but also demonstrably false. There was

4 compelling evidence disproving almost every facet of the defense’s case.
5 Id. at p. 776.
6 Although a defendant’s right to testify is his own and may not be overridden
by counsel, counsel nonetheless has the responsibility to independently
7 investigate and challenge a defendant’s implausible story. See Phillips v.
Woodford, 267 F.3d 966, 978-79 (9™ Cir. 2001) (stating that an attorney has
8 an obligation to investigate defendant’s “fincredibly lame™ alibi and
“‘confront the petitioner with the difficulties of his story™) (quoting Johnson
9 v. Baldwin, 114 F.3d 835, 838, 840 (9" Cir. 1997)). Here, an investigation
would have revealed that Pinholster’s alibi was highly suspect, giving rise
10 to counsel’s obligation to advise Pinholster against testifying, because the
Jjury would likely conclude he was lying. See also id at 979 (“ ‘The prejudice
11 from failing to investigate the alibi and confer more fully with petitioner is
not avoided by the fact that petitioner misinformed his attorney.”) (quoting
12 Johnson, 114 F.3d at 840). At the very least, counsel’s shortcoming in this
regard makes out a colorable claim of deficient performance for purposes
13 of obtaining an evidentiary hearing. See id. (Noting that the “colorable
claim” standard is “far less onerous” than the standard for granting the
14 writ), see also Earp v. Ornoski, 431 F.3d 1158, 1170 (9" Cir. 2005)
(describing the “colorable claim” standard as “a low bar”).
15
Id. at 525 F.3d 776-525 F.3d 777.
i6
This is exactly the situation which presented itself at trial. Petitioner’s counsel
17
had him commit to a version of events which was not supported by the facts, but
18
more importantly, not supported by Petitioner’s own expert at trial. Therefore,
19
the decision to have Petitioner testify under these circumstances is and was objectively
20
unreasonable and constituted ineffective assistance of counsel.
21
e. Testimony of Tricia Miller.
22
Petitioner incorporates pages 222-233 of the Memorandum of Points and
23
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
24
though fully set forth herein. Substantial portions of Tricia Miller’s testimony were the
25
proper subject of objection under Crawford v. Washington and were not objected to by
26
defense counsel, not because, as the Respondent asserts, the objections would have
27
been futile, but because of defense counsel’s unfamiliarity with the Crawford decision
28
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and its applicability to her testimony. Furthermore, the failure to properly pursue the
witness contamination issue was also per se ineffectiveness as counsel allowed the
court to “bully” him into not making an adequate record on these issues.

Therefore, despite the fact that Miller’s testimony was shown to be both false and
the product of coaching, the Court did not permit proper cross-examination. Defense
counsel failed to make an adequate record on this issue (AA Vo. 3, pp. 78-89). The
Ninth Circuit has held such a limitation to be a violation:

Nevertheless, the Court has held that a defendant’s Confrontation Clause
rights have been violated when he is “prohibited from engaging in otherwise
appropriate cross-examination . . . and thereby ‘to expose to the jury the
facts from which jurors . . . could appropriately draw inferences relating to
the reliability of the witness.” Id. at 680, 106 S.Ct. 1431 (quoting Davis,
415 U.8. at 318, 94 S.Ct. 1105). “[A] criminal defendant states a violation
of the Confrontation Clause by showing that he was prohibited from
engaging in otherwise appropriate cross-examination designed to show a
prototypical form of bias on the part of the witness.” Id. Accordingly, the
defendant has met his burden when he has shown that “[a] reasonable jury
might have received a significantly different impression of [a witness’]
credibility had . . . counsel been permitted to pursue his proposed line of
cross-examination.” Id.

Slovik v. Yates, 556 F.3d 747, 752-753 (C.A.9 (Cal.) 2009).

f. Self-defense Theory.

Petitioner incorporates pages 233-240 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. The test here is one that has been outlined by the
Nevada Supreme Court. In applying Strickland to the set of facts in Sanborn v. State,

the Court held:

Trial counsel did not adequately perform pretrial investigation, failed to
pursue evidence supportive of a claim of self-defense, and failed to explore
allegations of the victim’s propensity towards violence. Thus, he “was not
functioning as the ‘counsel’ guaranteed the defendant by the Sixth
Amendment.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S.Ct. At 2064. Moreover,
we are compelled to conclude that counsel’s failure were so severe that they
rendered the jury’s verdict unreliable. Had the jury been properly presented
with the evidence apparently available to support Sanborn’s claim of self-
defense, the outcome may very well have been different. Thus, counsel’s
efforts both before and during trial were sufficiently deficient “to deprive the
defendant of a fair trial.” Id. Accordingly, as discussed in greater detail
below, Sanborn has stated a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel that
warrants reversal of his conviction.
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Sanborn v. State, 107 Nev. 399, 812 P.2d 1279, 1283 (1991).

As in Sanborn, counsel’s failures, in this case, were that severe. The failure to
properly know, understand and apply Nevada law, retain and work with experts, and
other witnesses, to support your only theory of defense presented at trial is per se
ineffectiveness. This lessened the burden of prosecution as most, if not all, of the
evidence they claim was overwhelming was provided to them by defense counsel, due
to ineffective assistance of counsel, or was the product of prosecutorial misconduct.

The best evidence the State had was provided to them by defense counsel.
Utilizing Dr. Eisel as an expert, providing his notes and reports without first reading
them, advising Petitioner to testify and then not properly preparing with him for his
testimony and then setting him up for impeachment by providing to the State the name
and records of Dr. Sessions, essentially assured Petitioner’s conviction.

The witnesses presented by the State provided false or unsubstantiated
testimony (Tricia Miller, Lisa Eisenman, Sara Smith, Detective Thowsen and Francisco
“Quito” Sanchez). Their pretrial interview transcripts and statements were provided
on the date that they testified or were not provided to the defense at all (Thowsen), or
in a timely manner (Smith) or not completely (Quito).

Without this evidence the State had no case. Defense counsel went through the
motions of preparing a defense, but the failure to take the critical step of actually
interviewing witnesses, analyzing the information, documents and evidence and
preparing them for trial assured Petitioner’s conviction.

Therefore, Petitioner was prejudiced by trial counsel’s failure to present a
coherent argument on self-defense, thereby depriving Petitioner of any defense.
Defense counsel’s ineffective assistance thus rendered the trial result fundamentally

unfair or unreliable. U.S.C.A. Const.Amend. 6. See, Tejeda v. Dubois, 142 F.3d 18

(C.A.1 (Mass.) 1998). Depriving a criminal defendant of his only viable defense
certainly renders the resultant trial “flundamentally unfair or unreliable” as recognized

by the United States Supreme Court in Lockhart. See, Lockhart v. Fretwell, 506 U.S.
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364, 369, 113 S.Ct. 838, 842, 122 L.Ed.2d 180 (1993)).
g. Failure to Object to Hearsay Testimony.

Petitioner incorporates pages 240-243 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. A court of appeals may examine defendant’s claim, even
though it was raised for the first time on direct appeal from his or her conviction, that
defense counsel was ineffective because neither of his or her attorneys’ objected to
various “inflammatory” and “hearsay” statements that were elicited at trial, since this
is the type of ineffective-assistance claim which can be considered on the basis of the

trial record. U.S. v. Badger, 983 F.2d 1443, 37 Fed. R. Evid. Serv. 252 (7" Cir. 1993).

Defense counsel’s failure to object based upon the United States Supreme

Court’s decision in Crawford v. Washington was not a “strategic choice” but ineffective

assistance of counsel as it both allowed improper evidence to be presented and
received at trial, but he also did not preserve the issues for review on direct appeal and
instead left Petitioner with presenting them as “plain error” which is a much more
stringent standard on appeal.

However viewed, allowing Tricia Miller to testify that the decedent told her
Petitioner threatened to kill her, the children and himself and not objecting or asking
it be stricken or requesting a curative instruction was “objectively unreasonable” and
ineffective assistance of counsel (AA Vol. 2, p. 88 at p. 94). This was blatant hearsay
which was highly prejudicial and much more damaging than the hearsay in Tabish,
which caused his conviction to be reversed.

P. Defense Counsel was Ineffective as to Both Prosecutorial Misconduct

and Prejudicial Rulings of the Court.

Petitioner incorporates pages 243-244 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. The State claims in their Answer that the failure to object

is considered “strategy” and is not ineffectiveness. As the Court stated in Washington
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v. Hofbauer:

First, accepting as a proper trial strategy a lawyer’s doubts over the
effectiveness of objections and curative instructions would preclude
ineffectiveness claims in every case such as this, no matter how outrageous
the prosecutorial misconduct might be. In other words, were we to accept
the State’s argument, no failure to object could ever comprise ineffective
assistance of counsel, and no claim of prosecutorial misconduct, however
egregious, could be raised on habeas review if not objected to.

Washington v. Hofbauer, 228 F.3d 689, 706 (C.A.6 (Mich.) 2000).

Furthermore, to the extent that the failure to object did not preserve certain
issues for the record, this procedural default can be excused if a criminal defendant
can demonstrate cause for the procedural default and actual prejudice resulting from

the alleged constitutional error. See Rust v. Zent, 17 F.3d 155, 160 (6h Cir. 1994).

The failure to object comprising ineffective assistance of counsel provides the required
“cause.” See Coleman v. Thompson, 501 U.S. 722, 753-54, 111 S.Ct. 2546, 115
L.Ed.2d 640 (1991).

1. Disqualification of Dan Albregts and Canvass of Petitioner
(Ground One and Two in Part III of the Writ)

Petitioner incorporates pages 244-247 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Respondent has failed to address, at any point, the
abuse of discretion and prosecutorial misconduct, which is evident in the record and
the actions of the District Attorney’s Office in obtaining the disqualification of Dan
Albregts. Where was the authority for the canvass of Petitioner? Where was the
balancing of hardship which was required and recognized by our case law as cited
herein? Therefore, pursuant to EDCR 2.20 this ground should be decided in
Petitioner’s favor.

2. Failure to Request a Petrocelli Hearing (Ground 3, Part III of the

Writ).
Petitioner incorporates pages 247-270 of the Memorandum of Points and

Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction} as
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though fully set forth herein. Petitioner has made both a threshold showing that a
Petrocelli hearing was required and that his trial counsel failed to request it. Petitioner
has shown the extreme prejudice of the testimony of Sarah Smith and Adrienne
Atwood. Smith did not simply testify as to her observations, but made a number of
allegations for which a Petrocelli hearing was required before they should have been
admitted. Furthermore, the State had made representations that the very type of
testimony Sarah Smith gave would not be presented, but if at all, it would only be in
the rebuttal, and the Court (Judge Gibbons) ordered as such. See pp. 248 of the
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction}; Also see AA Vol. 1, pp. 155-156 at p. 65-66 (“. . . not in the
case in chief . . . possible in rebuttal.”); p. 157 at 70; p. 200 at p. 242-243 (“They won't
be able to go into it.”)

At a bare minimum, defense counsel is responsible for knowing the pre-trial
rulings of the Court and in this case it is obvious that he did not. Finally, despite the
fact that rhe State claimed, on the record, that they had been speaking with Ms. Smith
since “early on in the case” they did not provide her rather lengthy statement to the
defense until the day she was called to testify at trial. This should have been the
subject of a request for a continuance and other relief, including a request by defense
trial counsel to enforce the Court’s pre-trial ruling.

3. Testimony of Sgt. Winslow (Ground 4 in Section III of the Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 271-274 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Defense counsel either forgot or ignored the District
Court’s pretrial ruling regarding the limitation on the testimony of Sgt. Winslow and
defense trial counsel’s failure to object to the introduction of his testimony regarding
events and discussions, previously ruled excluded, was improper and prejudicial. See

Criminal Court Minutes, AA Vol. 1, pp. 20-25.
f1777
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4. Testimony of Francisco “Quito” Sanchez (Ground S in Section
III in the Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 202-218 and 274-276 of the Memorandum of
Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-
Conviction) as though fully set forth herein. The statements given by Quito to the State
and to the police were never turned over to the defense as the State had agreed to do
during the hearing held on his competency and on the admissibility of his testimony
which was held on December of 2001. This delay was highly prejudicial to the defense.
To now argue there is “no evidence in the record” ignores that there was evidence
presented in the record in December of 2001 to the point that the judge left open the
possibility of the exclusion of Quito’s entire testimony pending defense counsel’s review
of all the statements taken by the State. That review never occurred and this oversight
prejudiced Petitioner’s presentation of this issue and prevented the possible exclusion
of Quito’s testimony.

5. Testimony of Eva Cisneros (Ground 6 in Section III of the Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 277-282 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Defense counsel allowed the State to “sandbag” them
with regards to the testimony of Ms. Cisneros. This testimony, was both improperly
admitted and prejudicial for the reasons previously set forth above.

6. Attorney-Client/Attorney-Work Product Issues (Ground 7 in
Section III of the Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 283-287 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction} as
though fully set forth herein. As previously explained, Respondent misses the issue
in attempting to characterize the facts of this issue as the same as those in the
Koninklijke case. First and foremost, Respondent cites to a civil case, and plainly

stated, the rules in civil and criminal cases are different. This is not an issue of the
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“need” of the State to have these photos, this is the case of a former defense counsel
improperly “waiving” a privilege which can only be “waived” by Petitioner (the client)
and the State knowingly and improperly accepting and using the work-product in their
investigation and at trial to their advantage.
7. Testimony of Detective Townsend (Ground 7 and 8 in Section
III of the Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 287-292 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. An objection to the violation of Petitioner’s Fifth
Amendment rights being violated would hardly have been futile. Petitioner has made
out a prima facie case of the violation and the misconduct of the police in this matter
such that it should have been preserved for appellate review and would have had a
reasonable degree of success. However, Petitioner’s trial counsel failed to address this
or to preserve this issue for appeal.

8. Testimony and Records of Psychologist Mark Smith (Ground 9
in Section III of the Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 292-296 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Psychotherapist-patient privilege was recognized by the
United States Supreme Court in Jaffee v. Redmond, 518 U.S. 1, 116 S.Ct. 1923, 135

L.Ed.2d 337 (1996) where the Court held that: (1) federal law recognizes the privilege
protecting confidential communications between psychotherapist and her patient and
(2) statements that defendant police officer made to licensed social worker in course
of psychotherapy, and notes taken during their counseling sessions, were protected
from compelled disclosure. Nevada also recognizes this privilege. See NRS 49.207.
Petitioner has alleged that the defense trial counsel failed to review the records
of Mark Smith in order to be adequately prepared for his examination during the trial.

Therefore, there are sufficient facts alleged to warrant an evidentiary hearing on this
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matter. The citing to the Potter case by Respondent is misplaced as Potter dealt with
the issue of treatment and that was not an issue which is applicable with regard to
Mark Smith or at trial. The issue here is the violation of the privilege and the failure
of defense counsel to do anything about it.
9. Improper Vouching (Ground 10 in Section III of the Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 296-298 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. A prosecutor may not vouch for the credibility of a

witness or accuse a witness of lying. Lisle v. State, 113 Nev. 540, 553, 937 P.2d 473,

481 (1997) (stating that it is improper to vouch for the credibility of a government
witness); Ross v. State, 106 Nev. 924, 927, 803 P.2d 1104, 1105 (1990) (stating that
it is improper argument to characterize a witness as a liar).

The prosecution may not vouch for the credibility of a witness either by placing
the prestige of the government behind the witness or by indicating that information not

presented to the jury supports the witness’ testimony. Lisle v. State, 113 Nev. 540,

5353, 937 P.2d 473, 481 (1997), clarified on other grounds by 114 Nev. 221, 954 P.2d
744 (1998).

In United States v. Young and Darden v. Wainwright, the United States Supreme
Court concluded the statements by the prosecutor which inflamed the jury, vouched
for the credibility of witnesses, or offered the prosecutor’s personal opinion as to the

defendant’s guilt were improper. U.S. v. Robinson, 485 U.S. 25, 108 S.Ct. 864, 876

(U.S.Tenn. 1988). Improper vouching by a prosecutor poses two dangers:

[SJuch comments can convey the impression that evidence not presented to
the jury, but known to the prosecutor, supports the charges against the
defendant and can thus jeopardize the defendant’s right to be tried solely
on the basis of the evidence presented to the jury; and the prosecutor’s
opinion carries with it the imprimatur of the Government and may induce
the jury to trust the Government’s judgment rather than its own view of the
evidence.

U.S. v. Young, 470 U.S. 1, 105 S.Ct. 1038, 84 L.Ed.2d 1 (1985). A prosecutor’s

improper suggestions, insinuations, and especially, assertions of personal knowledge
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are apt to carry much weight against the accused when they should properly carry

none.” Bergerv. U.S., 295 U.S. 78, 88, 55 S.Ct. 629, 79 L.Ed. 1314 (1935).

There are sufficient facts and support in the record regarding this issue to
warrant the Court to hold an evidentiary hearing on this claim as the state vouched
for the credibility of its witnesses (i.e. Session) and also questioned Petitioner’s veracity
( AA Vol. 5, pp. 72-74, 212-213).

10. Petitioner’s Employment/Employment Records (Ground 11 in
Section III of the Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 298-304 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. The record cited to by both Petitioner and Respondent
points to the need to have an evidentiary hearing regarding this issue. Even the Court
admitted that the alleged (never proven) allegation that Petitioner brought a gun to
work, in violation of his employer’s policy, was an allegation that on its face was
improper, but it was allowed in anyway. See Tabish. The prejudice is obvious from a
review of the record cited to by Petitioner. By asking the questions about the
uncharged misconduct and the fact that it was a violation, can’t unring the proverbial
bell so the jury was allowed to infer that that is why Petitioner was terminated from his
employment for bringing a gun to work (unproven). As the adage goes, if it walks like
a duck, looks like a duck and quacks like a duck, it’s a duck.

Here, the State was allowed to present all the evidence that only implied why
Petitioner was fired (evidence which was ruled not admissible and improper) [see pp.
298-302 of Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction); also see AA Vol. 4, pp. 25 at pp. 99-100; p. 102 at
p. 70], and which gave the jury that inference, which was extremely prejudicial. The
State was also able to introduce Petitioner’s employment records, as well, without a
hearing and without his counsel first checking the records before they were presented

to the jury (AA Vol. 4, p. 33 at pp. 128-130). Much of the information in those records
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was irrelevant and was highly prejudicial. Defense counsel should have made an oral
motion or filed a written motion in limine and demanded a Petrocelli hearing on the
issue. But they did not. This constituted ineffective assistance of counsel. Therefore,
discovery is needed on this issue pursuant to NI'QS 34.780 as well as an evidentiary
hearing in order to afford Petitioner his constitutional right to due process.
11. Discovery Issues (Ground 12 in Section III of the Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 304-312 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. As the Ninth Circuit has said:

“We cannot overemphasize the importance of allowing a full and fair cross-
examination of government witnesses whose testimony is important to the
outcome of the case.” United States v. Brooke, 4 F.3d 1480, 1489 (9" Cir.
1993). Our cases confirm that the suppression of material impeachment
evidence, particularly for key state witnesses, may require the reversal of a
conviction or the vacating of a sentence. For example, in United States v.
Brumel-Alvarez, 991 F.2d 1452 (9™ Cir. 1993), we found that the
government’s withholding of a memorandum highly critical of the role and
integrity of a key government informant during the course of an undercover
drug investigation violated the defendants’due process rights under Brady.
See also Carriger v. Stewart, 132 F.3d 463, 479 (9™ Cir. 1997) (en banc)
(holding that the need for disclosure is particularly acute” with informant
witnesses who have made agreements where government failed to disclose
impeachment information regarding criminal activity of key confidential
informant).

Silva v. Woodford, 279 F.3d 825, 854 (C.A.9 {Cal.) 2002}.

Petitioner’s counsel cited to all the necessary case law and the appropriate
precedents from the applicable cases so as to require the State to do more than simply
deny that they failed to turn evidence over, but to require the Court to conduct an in
camera inspection as to those items which the defense felt were being withheld.
Furthermore, a threshold showing was made that a number of witnesses for the State
refused to cooperate with the defense and the State either never turned over
statements or materials for them despite calling them as witnesses (various employees
of Eagle Sentry for example) or provided the information at the “last minute” out of
some misguided sense of “getting even” (pre-trial statements of Quito ) or for no reason

at all (Sarah Smith). Providing any material information at the last minute precluded
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the defense from investigating it or otherwise preparing to use it for other proper
purposes. Defense counsel should have moved to exclude this evidence but they did
not. This constituted ineffective representation on this issue.

Nevertheless, if any doubt exists as to whether Brady applies to specific evidence,
the government should disclose the evidence to the defendants or submit it to the court
for an in camera inspection. See Agurs, 472 U.S. at 108, 96 S.Ct. 2392. Because
Brady does not require bad faith on the part of the prosecution for a violation of due
process, the rule encompasses evidence “known only to police investigators and not

to the prosecutor.” Kyles v. Whitley, 514 U.S. 419, 438, 115 S.Ct. 1555 (1995). In

order to comply with Brady, therefore, “the individual prosecutor has a duty to learn
of any favorable evidence known to the others acting on the government’s behalf in the
case, including the police.” Id. at 437, 115 S.Ct. 1555.

Petitioner believes, and thereupon alleges that the State failed to turn over the
witnesses’ statements and other evidence regarding the following witnesses:

1. Emeline Eisenman- the State never turned over. She was present for the
interviews of her grandson Quito, during which he was coached to lie by her to both
the investigators and the district attorney regarding the events of December 5, 2000.
She was also interviewed by the GAL regarding the decedent, Petitioner, Quito and her
knowledge of the events which form the basis for the criminal case. See pp. 173-185,
204-212 of the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).

2. Francisco “Quito” Sanchez- the State stated on the record at the March 2001
Petrocelli hearing that they would provide the additional interviews, notes, and tapes,
yet they never did. He was also interviewed by the GAL about the decedent, Petitioner,
Emeline Eisenman and his knowledge of the events which formed the bases for the
criminal case. See pp. 179-181 of the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction); AA. Vol. 1, pp. 184,
190-194.
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3. Detective Thowsen-the State never turned them over. Thowsen testified at
trial that although none of his reports or other documents reflected that he observed
an alleged discussion between Petitioner and his counsel the night of the incident
(December 20, 2000), this came up in his discussions with members of the District
Attorney’s Office immediately prior to trial. This interview was never provided to the
defense. Once the detective testified to it on the stand, there would be no privilege
associated with any notes or interview. See pp. 287-292 of the Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction); also
see AAVol. 4, p. 179, p. 183 at p. 122, p.184.

Petitioner further believes this “revelation” three and one-half years later may
have been the product of the improperly and illegally obtained information, documents,
evidence, and photographs which were turned over to the State by counsel for Janeen
Mutch and Troy Isaacson (who were acting at the direction of Petitioner’s counsel,
Harvey Gruber) (AA Vol. 2, pp. 51-52).

4. Scott Sessions— the State never turned over any of the interviews conducted
with Sessions or additional documents, information or anything else obtained from
him.

5. Customers, vendors and co-workers of decedent - the State did not turn over
all of the materials regarding interviews conducted by police or district attorney
investigators, vendors and co-workers of the decedent, except for the late turning over
of some of the witness statements of those who testified at trial. When contacted pre-
trial, the customers and co-workers stated they had spoken with the police and
members of the district attorney’s office who told them unequivocally not to speak with
the defense attorneys or investigators and to call them (the police and district attorney)
if they were contacted (AA Vol. 4, p. 65).

6. Petitioner’s employer and co-workers—the State did not turn over all of the
materials regarding interviews conducted with Petitioner’s employer and co-workers.

The most egregious, but by no means exhaustive, examples were with Sara Smith and
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Mike Stevenson. As for Sara Smith, the State was allowed to turn her 2003 statement
over to the defense on the day that she was scheduled to testify (as they had done
previously with Quito in 2001 during the Petrocelli hearing). The statement was
replete with unfounded and unsubstantiated allegations regarding Petitioner that could
not be refuted “on the spot.”’® The State thought this was therefore in “substantial
compliance” with their obligations under the NRS and Brady, but the practical and
actual result was that it denied Petitioner the ability to properly prepare and examine
these witnesses as was his right to do so under the Fifth, Fourteenth, and Sixth
Amendments of the Constitution of the United States. See p. 190 (Michael Stevenson),
pp- 248-268 (Sara Smith) of the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).

7. Lt. Franks of the LVMPD-it is believed by Petitioner that the detectives and
members of the district attorney’s office spoke with him about the impropriety of
having him testify on Petitioner’s behalf. This deprived Petitioner of his ability to fully
and fairly present his defense and violated his right to a fair trial and counsel under
the Sixth Amendment. See pp. 185-189 of the Memorandum of Points and Authorities
in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction); also see AA Vol. 1,
pp. 150-151, p. 173. In essence, the State interfered with a defense witness, if in fact
defense counsel had arranged for him to testify. Yet defense counsel did nothing to
effectively bring this matter to the court’s attention or to resolve it in the defendant’s
favor.

This is not a new or shocking allegation against the Clark County District
Attorney’s Office who made improper arguments to the Court regarding the applicable

law and essentially got away with it. The State was wrong in their recitation of the

'®Also provided no notice of the “smear campaign” evidence ruled inadmissible
in the case-in-chief and even rebuttal pre-trial. Reporter’s Transcript Motions
Hearing, December 21, 2001, (“. . . not in the case-in-chief . . . possibly in
rebuttal.”) (AA Vol. 1, pp. 155-156 at pp. 65-66, 70; (“They won'’t be able to get into
it.”) (AA Vol. 1, p. 200 at pp. 242-243)
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1 || applicable law and the Court was wrong in the denial of the defense request. A full

2 || hearing should be held on this matter in order to complete the record in case of an
3 || appeal or application for a federal writ.
4

12. Lessening of the Burden of Proof (Ground 13 in Section III of
5 the Writ).
6 Petitioner incorporates pages 312-313 of the Memorandum of Points and
7 || Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
8 || though fully set forth herein. The Respondent makes no effort to refute the fact that
9 || both prosegutors, at trial, made comments which changed the burden of proof.

10 Objectioris by defense counsel would not have been futile, but in fact would have
11 || properly preserved the matter for direct review which is a lesser standard than trying
12 || to have the matter reviewed under the tougher standard of plain error. The Court’s
13 | dismissive comments regarding the issue are further proof that it was an abuse of
14 || discretion to not, sua sponte, give a curative instruction or for defense counsel to
15 || request a motion to strike from the record and request a curative instruction for the
16 || jury. The failure to object constituted constitutionally ineffective assistance of counsel.
17 13. Pretrial Motions (Ground 14 in Section III of the Writ).

18 Petitioner incorporates pages 313-318 of the Memorandum of Points and
19 || Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
20 || though fully set forth herein. In a number of cases, the failure to make particular

21 || motions or objections has been held to constitute ineffective assistance of counsel in

22 || view of the attendant circumstances and the applicable test of effectiveness. Everett
23 || v. Beard, 290 F.3d 500 (3d Cir. 2002), cert. Denied, 537 U.S. 1107, 123 S.Ct. 877, 154
24 | L.Ed. 2d 777 (2003).

25 Respondent misses the mark in the answer to this ground. Petitioner has made
26 || a prima facie showing that defense trial counsel’s failure to both seek to enforce the

27 || Court’s orders which resulted from and to file pre-trial motions prejudiced him at trial.

28 || For example, the failure to have the Court hold a Petrocelli hearing or exclude Sarah
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Smith’s testimony on the alleged “smear campaign” issue cannot be ruled strategy.
And since there is no basis for the State’s staternent “Defendant’s counsel was effective
in his skilled representation of Defendant’s case, including pre-trial motions” and
therefore it is the same “self-serving” “bare allegation” which Respondent encourages
this court to disregard since it is not supported by the record.

Petitioner has alleged and provided sufficient facts, evidence and references to
the record to support the ten (10) categories of pre-trial motion ineffectiveness.

14. Jury Instructions (Ground 15 of Part III of the Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 319-320 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. In general, the decision not to request a limiting
instruction is “solidly within the acceptable range of strategic tactics employed by trial

lawyers in the mitigation of damning evidence.” United States v. Gregory, 74 F.3d 819,

823 (7™ Cir. 1996). Musladin v. Lamarque, 555 F.3d 830 (9* Cir. 2009). Here, counsel
failed to request a limiting or curative instruction regarding the various incidents of
prosecutorial misconduct and on the issue of lost evidence.

But the reasonable strategic basis for failing to request a limiting or curative
instruction vanished when, during closing arguments, the prosecutor pointed to
Garrick’s statements as uncontroverted evidence of premeditation. The jury’s attention
was directly drawn to the evidence, so a limiting instruction did not risk highlighting
evidence the jury might have forgotten. More significantly, the jury was invited to draw
the precise inference-that Garrick’s statement was true-that a limiting instruction

would have prohibited. Musladin v. Lamarque, 555 F.3d 830 (9™ Cir. 2009).

After the prosecutor drew the jury’s attention to the damaging statement and
invited them to draw the precise inference that a limiting instruction would have
forbidden, Musladin’s trial counsel’s failure to request a limiting instruction “fell below
an objective standard of reasonableness.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S.Ct. 2052.
Musladin v. Lamarque, 555 F.3d 830 (9™ Cir. Cal. 2009).
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The amount of lost evidence in this case is astounding. Respondent’s claim that
there is no lost evidence or that the lost evidence was not prejudicial is without
support, is self-serving and is therefore without merit. Petitioner should at least be
given an opportunity in an evidentiary hearing to prove the merits of this allegation.
A lost evidence instruction, and the other instructions requested by defense counsel
(and not addressed by Respondent in the answer) should have been requested and
given. The failure by defense counsel to request these instructions constituted
constitutional ineffective assistance of counsel.

15. Cross-Examination (Ground 16 of Part III of the Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 320-325 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Respondent only contends that the decision to object to
the cross-examination of Petitioner was within defense counsel’s discretion, therefore,
by not addressing the cross-examination of Petitioner’s parents, they concede those
issues. Counsel failed to know, understand or apply the Nevada Supreme court’s

decision in Daniel v. State which prohibited the very same conduct and improper

cross-examination techniques which the prosecutor engaged in during this trial. This
failure was prejudicial as it allowed questioning, evidence and the inferences thereof
to be improperly received by the jury. Prosecutor, Clark Peterson’s sarcastic cross-
examination of Petitioner by using questions which assumed facts not in evidence and
was based upon him actually testifying, was highly prejudicial, was prosecutorial
misconduct and denied Petitioner his constitutional rights to a fair trial and due

process of law.
16. Introduction of Evidence at Trial (Ground 17 of Part IilI of the

Writ).

Petitioner incorporates pages 325-328 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as

though fully set forth herein. Asking witnesses if they are afraid of a defendant while
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they are testifying, especially in front of a jury, is clearly improper, prejudicial, is
prosecutorial conduct and should not have been allowed at trial. Defense counsel
should have sought a mistrial but he did not do so. That constituted constitutionally
ineffective representation.
17. Defense Counsel was Ineffective after His Conviction.
Petitioner incorporates pages 328-330 of the Memorandum of Points and

Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. It is clear that the State prevented Petitioner from
bringing forth the necessary facts, documents, and other evidence regarding juror
misconduct through the misrepresentations made to the Court at the hearing on the
motion. As the United States Supreme Court has said:

On the one hand, the fact that such evidence was available to the

prosecutor and not submitted to the defense places it in a different category

than if it had simply been discovered from a neutral source after trial. For

that reason, the defendant should not have to satisfy the severe burden of

demonstrating that newly discovered evidence probably would have resulted

in an acquittal. If the standard applied to the usual motion for a new trial

based on newly discovered evidence were the same when the evidence was

in the State’s possession as when it was found in a neutral source, there

would be no special significance to the prosecutor’s obligation to serve the

cause of justice.

U.S. v. Agurs, 427 U.S. 97, 96 S.Ct. 2392, 2401 (U.S.Dist.Col. 1976)

Here, Petitioner has made a prima facie showing that his trial counsel was both
unavailable and that this unavailability resulted in the failure to file the Motion for New
Trial in a timely manner. It has also been shown herein that the State prevented the
motion from proceeding to an evidentiary hearing which was improper, and resuited
in the denial of both the motion and the preservation of this issue on direct appeal.

III.
Petitioner is Entitled to Relief Under the Doctrine of Cumulative Error.

Petitioner incorporates pages 330-332 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as

though fully set forth herein. The Court has allowed for the possibility that a single
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error may suffice “if that error is sufficiently egregious and prejudicial.” Murray v.
Carrier, 477 U.S. 478, 496, 106 S.Ct. 2639, 91 L.Ed.2d 397 (1986). Multiple errors,
even if harmless individually, may entitled a petitioner to habeas relief if their
cumulative effect prejudiced the defendant. Mak v. Blodgett, 970 F.2d 614, 622 (9™
Cir. 1992), cert. Denied, 507 U.S. 951, 113 S.Ct. 1363, 122 L.Ed.2d 742 (1993); See
also United States v. Tucker, 716 F.2d 576, 595 (9" Cir. 1983}; Cooper v. Fitzharris,
586 F.2d 1325, 1333 (9" Cir. 1978) (en banc) (holding that “prejudice may result from

the cumulative impact of multiple deficiencies”).

“The cumulative effect of errors may violate a defendant’s constitutional right to
a fair trial even though errors are harmless individually.” When evaluating a claim of
cumulative error, the Nevada Supreme Court considers the following factors: “(1)
whether the issue of guilt is close, (2) the quantity and character of the error, and (3)
the gravity of the crime charged.” The court stated it must ensure that harmless-error
analysis “does not allow prosecutors to engage in misconduct by overlooking

cumulative error in cases with substantial evidence of guilt.” See Valdez v. State, 124

Nev. 97, 196 P.3d 465, 487 (2008)."°

Petitioner has made a threshold showing of multiple prejudicial errors at trial
which both individually and collectively entitle him to the relief he seeks in his writ.
These are not errors that “had an isolated, trivial effect.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 695-
696, 104 5.Ct. 2052. Especially in light of the coroner’s testimony that the evidence
presented could support self-defense, and in light of the other verdicts that were
possible (i.e. manslaughter or second degree), it cannot be said that these errors

collectively were harmless. Several of the errors pointed out, individually were

"In this case, we conclude that although the evidence supports the jury’s
verdict that Valdez murdered Tilden with willfulness, premeditation, and
deliberation, the evidence, particularly as to Valdez’s intent, is not overwhelming
. . .Therefore, we conclude that although there was sufficient evidence to support
Valdez’s conviction for first-degree murder, the evidence was not overwhelming, Id.
at 481. This is the same as with Petitioner’s case.
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egregious and standing alone would be sufficient to warrant a new trial as it is clear
that at various points in these proceedings, the Petitioner’s Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth
Amendment rights were violated thereby denying him of due process and a fair trial.
IV.
CONCLUSION

Wherefore, based upon the above stated points and authorities and arguments,
Petitioner respectfully requests that this Court issue an Order which requires:

1. Issuance of a Writ of Habeas Corpus to have Petitioner brought before this
Court so that he may be discharged from his unconstitutional confinement;

2. Conduct an evidentiary hearing during which proof may be offered concerning
the allegations in this Petition and any affirmative defenses raised thereto by the
Respondent,

3. Grant leave for Petitioner to perform additional, necessary and reasonable
discovery, which is authorized under NRS 34.780, so that he can substantiate the
claims for relief raised in the Petition; and

4. Grant any ot relief that may be appropriate in the interest of justice.

DATED thi day of October, 2009.

CARMINE J. COLUCCI, GHTD.

CARMINE J. COLUCCI, ESQ.
ada Bar No. $881

629 South SixXth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorney for Petitioner
ALFRED P. CENTOFANTI III

94

Appellant's  Appendix Volume 12, Page 94




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

AFFIDAVIT OF ALFRED P. CENTOFANTI, II1

STATE OF NEVADA }
} SS:
COUNTY OF WHITE PINE }

I, ALFRED P. CENTOFANTI, 111, Petitioner in the above-entitled matter, hereby swears under
penalty of perjury, pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute 208.165 (Execution of Instrument by Prisoner)
that the assertions made in the attached Petitioner’s Reply to the Answer to Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post
Conviction) are true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

DATED this2$ 7h day of October, 2009.

)t

o

ALFRED P. CENTOFANTI, HI, #85237
Ely State Prison

P.O. Box 1989

Ely, Nevada 89301-1989

Petitioner
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1 | INST CEDIN N OPEN %;y
2 APR 1 6 2004
‘ — CLETK

z | SHIFLEY B, PARRAG] %ﬁ/ ‘
S MELISSA SWINN DERUTY

6 CLARK COUNTY. NEVADA

7

8 || THE STATE OF NEVADA, )

9 Plaintiff, CASENO: Cl172534
10 -Vs- DEPT NQ: XIV
11 jj ALFRED PAUL CENTOFANTI, 1II,
12 Defendant.
13 INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY (INSTRUCTION NO. I)
14 MEMBERS OF THE JURY:
15 It is now my duty as judge to instruct you in the law that applies to this case. It is
16 || your duty as jurors to follow these instructions and to apply the rules of law to the facts as
17 | you find them from the evidence.
18 You must not be concerned with the wisdom of any rule of law stated in tbe.se
19 || instructions. Regardless of any opinion you may have as to what the law ought fo be, it
20 || would be a violation of your oath to base a verdict upon any other view of the law than that
21 || given in the instructions of the Court.
22
23
24
25
26
27
28 | RETEIV. D

APR 1 6 2004
Cﬁ@iﬁ-f-‘é'ﬁ' Y&l
- _ e

Sttt
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INSTRUCTION NO. 14
An honest but unreasonable belief in the necessity for self-defense does not negate

malice and does not reduce the offense from murder to manslaughter.
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addressed to:

Ely State Prison
P.O. Box 1989

Ely, NV 89301

Carson City, NV

Appellant's

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL

E.K. McDaniel, Warden

4569 North State Rt. 490

Nevada Attorney General
Heroes’ Memorial Building
Capital Complex

89701

[ hereby certify pursuant to NRCP 5(b), that on this Z{ﬁ day of November, 2009,
I mailed a true and correct copy of the foregoing Memorandum of Points and

Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction)

//?m W/c@@dé)/{

CA

Appendix Vol

lo ee of
INEJ COLUCCI, CHTD
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RECEIPT OF COPY
RECEIPT OF A COPY of PETITIONER’S REPLY TO RESPONDENT’S ANSWER TO
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION) is hereby acknowledged thiscg)iay
of November, 2009.

DAVID ROGER

Las Vegas, NV 89155
Attorney for Respondent
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I APPL
5 || CARMINE J. COLUCCI CHTD. S R Y
CARMINE J. COLUCCI, ESQ. i 0
3 || Nevada Bar #000881
4 629 South Sixth Street (\ 4
{

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

5 || (702) 384-1274

Fax: (702) 384-4453

6 || Attorney for Petitioner
ALFRED P. CENTOFANTI III

9

0 DISTRICT COURT

b CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

121 ALFRED P. CENTOFANT! 111, CASE NO. C172534

13 DEPT NO. VI
Petitioner,

14

151 Vs
16 || E.K. McDANIEL, WARDEN,
7 ELY STATE PRISON,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
18 Respondent. )
)

19
EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL

20 AND PAYMENT OF COSTS
21

COMES NOW PETITIONER, ALFRED P. CENTOFANTI, 111, by and through
22

23 his present counsel, CARMINE J. COLUCCI, ESQ., of the law firm of CARMINE J.

24 || COLUCCI, CHTD., and now moves this court for an order appointing his present

g = 25 | counsel and authorizing the payment of all necessary costs and expenses incident
)

26
< 2 to the present proceedings pursuant to the applicable provisions of NRS 34.750
e 7
& . "';8 and 7.125 which are cited herein as petitioner has been incarcerated since March
g i ‘.
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Ap(

4, 2005, and is indigent and unable to pay counsel or the expenses attendant to
this proceeding.
This application is based upon the points and authorities submitted
herewith together with the affidavit of Carmine J. Colucci, Esq., attached hereto.
DATED this (L day of April, 2010.
CARMINE J. COLUCCI, CHTD.
QMINE . COLUCCI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar\No. 0881
629 South Sixth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

Petitioner has filed his Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction)
and this court has scheduled an evidentiary hearing for May 21, 2010. Petitioner
had also requested and was granted permission by this court to conduct a
deposition of the San Diego attorney who represented Petitioner at trial and who
is the subject of an allegation that he was constitutionally ineffective at trial.

Since his incarceration in 2005, Petitioner, through the generosity of family
members and friends, had employed his present counsel to represent him in his
appeal and had sought his present counsel’s representation in this proceeding
based upon his belief that Petitioner’s family and friends, who had helped him
financially in the past, would be able to continue to do so. Unfortunately, they are

unable to do so and since October, 2007, have only been able to pay the total sum

.

ellant's  Appendix Volume 12, Page 102




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

of four thousand two hundred ($4,200.00) which must be used to cover the travel
expenses to San Diego, court reporter’s per diem fee, the cost of the deposition
which includes the per page rate transcription fee, plus the legal fees for the
preparation for and taking of the deposition, preparation for the subsequent
evidentiary hearing and the fees for any costs attendant thereto such as service
of subpoenas, witness fees and copy costs.

Petitioner is presently serving a sentence of life without the possibility of
parole with a like consecutive sentence for his 2005 conviction of murder in the
first degree. There were numerous issues raised in the petition including the
claim of ineffective assistance of counsel which encompasses the way petitioner’s
trial counsel handled certain matters in the pre-trial proceedings and during trial.

Given the need to travel to San Diego to take the deposition of trial counsel,
the complexity of the case and the numerous factual and legal issues raised in the
petition relating to the ineffectiveness issue, and because a subsequent all-day
evidentiary hearing is anticipated, petitioner asserts that because he is indigent,
his request for the court appointment of his present counsel who is familiar with
his case, would be the most prudent manner to handle this request.

NRS 34.750 states in pertinent part as follows:

NRS 34.750 Appointment of counsel for indigents; pleadings
supplemental to petition; response to motion to dismiss.

1. A petition may allege that the petitioner is unable to pay the
costs of the proceedings or to employ counsel. If the court is satisfied
that the allegation of indigency is true and the petition is not
dismissed summarily, the court may appoint counsel to represent the
petitioner. In making its determination, the court may consider,

-3-
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among other things, the severity of the consequences facing the
petitioner and whether:
( a) The issues presented are difficult;
( b) The petitioner is unable to comprehend the proceedings; or
( ¢) Counsel is necessary to proceed with discovery.

2. If the court determines that the petitioner is unable to pay all
necessary costs and expenses incident to the proceedings of the trial
court and the reviewing court, including court costs, stenographic
services, printing and reasonable compensation for legal services, all
costs must be paid from money appropriated to the office of the State
Public Defender for that purpose. After appropriations for that
purpose are exhausted, money must be allocated to the office of the
State Public Defender from the Reserve for Statutory Contingency
Account for the payment of the costs, expenses and compensation.

NRS 7.125 states in pertinent part as follows:

NRS 7.125 Fees of appointed attorney other than public
defender.

3. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, an attorney
appointed by a district court to represent an indigent petitioner for a
writ of habeas corpus or other postconviction relief, if the petitioner
is imprisoned pursuant to a judgment of conviction of a gross
misdemeanor or felony, is entitled to be paid a fee not to exceed
$750.00.

4. If the appointing court because of:
( a) The complexity of a case or the number of its factual or
legal issues;
( b) The severity of the offense;
( ¢) The time necessary to provide an adequate defense; or
( d) Other special circumstances,

deems it appropriate to grant a fee in excess of the applicable
maximum, the payment must be made, but only if the court in which
the representation was rendered certifies that the amount of the
excess payment is both reasonable and necessary and the payment
is approved by the presiding judge of the judicial district in which the
attorney was appointed, or if there is no such presiding judge or if he
or she presided over the court in which the representation was
rendered, then by the district judge who holds seniority in years of

-4 -
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service in office.
In addition, prior to the commencement of his trial, Petitioner filed a motion

based upon Widdis v. District Court, 114 Nev. 1224, 968 P.2d 1165 (1998),

seeking public funding based upon his indigency. That motion was granted and
an order was entered on November 15, 2001. Petitioner’s financial situation has
not improved and once again he needs financial assistance. His indigency was
previously established and has not improved since he has been incarcerated by
the Nevada Department of Corrections maximum security prison at Ely, Nevada,
since his sentencing in 2005.
In Widdis, the Nevada Supreme Court held:

Accordingly, we hold that a criminal defendant who has retained

private counsel is nonetheless entitled to reasonable defense services

at public expense based upon the defendant’s showing of indigency

and the need for services. Id. at 1229.
It is abundantly clear that Petitioner has established his indigency and the need
for the services mentioned herein.

For the above stated reasons, those mentioned in the petition and
supporting points and authorities, and those mentioned in the Affidavit of
Carmine J. Colucci, Esq., attached hereto, Petitioner seeks an order from this

court appointing Petitioner’s present counsel and authorizing payment to

appointed counsel at the statutory rate set forth in NRS 7.125 along with the

111777
11777
17177

-5-
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DATED this (1_ day of April, 2010.

CARMINE J. COLUCCI, CHTD.

6 CARMI . COLUCCI, ESQ.
7 evada Bar No. (881

629 South Si Street
8 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant
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AFFIDAVIT OF CARMINE J. COLUCCI

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss:
CLARK OF CLARK )

CARMINE J. COLUCCI, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

1. That affiant is an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of
Nevada; that he is the attorney of record for the Defendant, ALFRED
CENTOFANTI, and that he has personal knowledge of the matters stated herein
in this Affidavit, except for those matters stated on information belief, and is
competent to testify thereon.

2. That affiant was not Petitioner’s trial counsel but did handle a post-trial
motion for new trial, sentencing and appeal in this case.

3. That affiant also filed the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-
Conviction), the Points and Authorities in support thereof and the Reply Brief in
response to the state’s opposition.

4. That affiant has also appeared on Petitioner’s behalf in the court
proceedings attendant thereto and has prepared various motions relating to the
pending petition including the discovery motion that was granted resulting in
Petitioner being authorized to take attorney Allen Bloom’s deposition in San Diego,
California, on April 23, 2010.

S. That despite the concerted efforts of Petitioner’s family members and
friends, Petitioner has only been able to raise the sum of $4200.00 since October,

2007, through the present and that sum will not cover the costs and legal fees for

-7-
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the taking of the deposition of Allen Bloom in San Diego or pay for the legal
services to be expended on Petitioner’s behalf as counsel continues to prepare for
the taking of the deposition and for the evidentiary hearing scheduled for May 21,
2010, which is anticipated to take one full day and which undoubtedly will result
in post-hearing briefs and court appearances.

6. That affiant has had recent contact with Petitioner’s parents and friends
who have indicated to affiant that there is no possibility that additional funds will
be available to fund this court proceeding or any future court proceedings on
Petitioner’s behalf.

7. That affiant has had numerous conversations with Petitioner regarding
the funding for the present proceeding and that Petitioner, who has been
incarcerated by the Nevada Department of Corrections at Ely State Prison since
March, 2005, does not have access to any funds except maybe the $20.00 on his
prison commissary account.

8. That affiant is informed and believes that Petitioner does not have any

funds with which to pay for legal services in this matter and that Petitioner has

specifically requested that affiant file W%O

\CARMINE J. 3QLUCCI

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before
me this _é day of April, 2010.

PR /7(@@;

NOTA/PéY PUBLIC in and for said / . ot Bres 02 8. 2010

“~  County and State

-8 -
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CARMINE J. COLUCCI CHTD. b 1T 20 FH'IC
CARMINE J. COLUCCI, ESQ.

3 | Nevada Bar #000881 o

629 South Sixth Strect (Z

4| Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 -

5 || Telephone: (702) 384-1274

Fax: (702) 384-4453

6 || Attorney for Petitioner

ALFRED P. CENTOFANTI Il

8
9

10 DISTRICT COURT

11 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

12| ALFRED P. CENTOFANTI I1I, CASE NO. C172534
13 DEPT NQO. VI

Petitioner,
14
15 VS.

16 | E.K. McDANIEL, WARDEN,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
ELY STATE PRISON, )
)
)
)

17

18 Respondent.

19

20 EX PARTE ORDER

21 Based upon the Ex Parte Application for Appointment of Counsel and

22 || Payment of Costs, made by Carmine J. Colucci, Esq, on behalf of the petitioner,

2 .
3 and good cause appearing therefore;

24

iy IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that petitioner’s request for an order appointing

wl/ /777
27077777
11177
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his present counsel, Carmine J. Colucci, Esq, and authorizing the payment of all
necessary costs and expenses incident to the present proceedings pursuant to the
applicable provisions of NRS 34.750 and 7.125 is hereby granted.

DATED this :Z day of April, 2010.

s Eld/

DISTRICT JUDGEI'Q

CARMINE J. COLUCC],, CHTD.

CARMINE . CQLUCCI, ESQ.
~Nevada Bai No/ 000881
629 South Sixtth Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 384-1274
Fax: (702) 384-4453
Attorneys for Petitioner,
Alfred P. Centofanti, III

-2
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DAVID ROGER F

Clark County District Attorney / LE D

Nevada Bar #002781 J

MICHAEL J, SCHWARTZER UL 2 99

Reputy Distrie omey ohe
evada Bar o "

200 Lewis Avenue CLERK é%

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA FILE WITH

THE STATE OF NEVADA, ) MASTER CALENDAR
CASENO: C172534

DEPTNO: VI
-vs- DEPARTMENT Vi

NOTICE OF HEARI
ALFRED CENTOFANTI, III, #1730535 DATE )36 10 TIME %:
STATE'S MOTION TO STRIKE DEFENDANT'S EXPERTS
DATE OF HEARING: July 30, 2010
TIME OF HEARING: %&%QDM
COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, through
MICHAEL J. SCHWARTZER, Deputy District Attorney, and hereby submits the attached

Plaintiff,

Points and Authorities in support of the State’s Motion to Strike Defendant's Expert

Witnesses.
This Motion to Strike is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file
herein, the attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of

hearing, if deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

Iy 7 B1C172534
MSTA

Motion to Strike
/77 870845

ATV

Iy

PAWPDOCSWOTIONWOGI0009.doc
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On December 22, 2000, Alfred P. Centofanti III, hereinafter “Defendant”, was

charged by way of Criminal Complaint with Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon (Felony
— NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165). On January 10, 2001, an Indictment was filed setting

forth the same charge. Thereafter, the Defendant pled not guilty at his initial arraignment on
January 17, 2001, and waived the 60-day trial rule.

The Defendant then filed a petition for writ of habeas corpus which was denied by the
district court on May 22, 2001.

The Defendant’s jury trial commenced on March 15, 2004, and lasted for thirteen
days, concluding on April 16, 2004, with the jury finding the Defendant guilty of the charge
on April 22, 2004. On June 28, 2004, the Defendant moved for a new trial, and the State
opposed the motion on August 10, 2004. That motion was ultimately denied on August 26,
2004. In response to the district court’s holding, the Defendant filed a Writ of
Mandamus/Prohibition with the Nevada Supreme Court to which the Court issued an Order
Directing Answer and Granting Temporary Stay on September 8, 2004. On February 16,
2005, the Defendant filed a Motion for Rehearing and Request for Stay Pending Decision,
yet this was denied by the Nevada Supreme Court.

On March 4, 20035, he was sentenced to Life Without the Possibility of Parole plus an

equal and consecutive sentence of Life Without the Possibility of Parole for use of a deadly

weapon. Defendant received three hundred seventy-four (374) days credit for time served.

A Judgment of Conviction was filed on March 11, 2005.Thereafter, Defendant filed
his Notice of Appeal on March 24, 2005. The Supreme Court of Nevada affirmed the
judgment of the district court on December 27, 2006.

On February 29, 2008, Defendant filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. On July
15, 2008, the State filed its Response to Defendant’s Petition. On November 3, 2009, the
Defendant filed a Reply to the State’s Response. On December 2, 2009, this court dismissed

all claims in Defendant’s Petition except for claims of ineffective assistance of counsel.

2 PAWPDOCSWOTIONWOGI009 doc
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On January 20, 2010, this court granted Defendant’s request to take the out-of-state
deposition of his former trial counsel, Allen R. Bloom (“Bloom™). On April 23, 2010, the
deposition of Bloom took place in San Diego, California. On April 28, 2010, the parties
jointly agreed to move the evidentiary hearing date to July 30, 2010.

On July 15, 2010, Defendant sent via facsimile a Notice of Expert Witnesses to the
State’s Criminal Appeals Division. In Defendant’s Notice he listed attorneys Christopher R.
Oram and John Lukens as experts who will “testify concerning whether defense counsels’

performance in representing Petitioner in this case fell below the objective standard of

O 00 =1 O th B W N

reasonableness as set forth in Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984)”. On July 23,

S
<

2010, Defendant sent the State via facsimile Mr. Oram’s and Mr. Luken’s resumes. Neither

—
—

Mr. Oram nor Mr. Lukens has provided the State with a report of their findings. The State

)
[

responds accordingly.

STATEMENT OF FACTS!

[—y
[F'8 ]

—
~

Defendant, was a licensed attorney in the State of Nevada, married victim Virginia

Centofanti (“Gina™) on February 14, 1999. On July 25, 2000, their son Nicholas Centofanti

—
N

was born. Gina also had a nine-year-old son, Francisco “Quito” Sanchez, from a previous

—
~J]

relationship.

—
o0

On the morning of December 5, 2000, police were summoned to the Centofanti home

f—
o

at 8720 Wintry Garden Avenue in Clark County as a result of a 911 call. Defendant and

]
o]

Gina had gotten into an argument over the fact that she had arrived at home in the early

[\
—

morning hours on December 5, 2000, after being out all night with friends. The argument

[\
[\

escalated beyond control and Defendant, enraged, put a gun to her head and told her that he

b2
(W8]

was going to kill her and the kids. While trying to struggle with Defendant for the gun, Gina

[
=

received a split lip. Defendant then got on the phone to call Gina's boss to accuse him of

N
wn

having an affair with Gina. In order to stop Defendant from embarrassing her at her place of

NS T S
~ N

! Taken from trial transcripts, also see Exhibit 2 of Defendant’s Exhibits 1 through 11 to the Memorandum of Points an
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction}.

N
o0
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work by calling her supervisor, Gina broke a picture frame over the Defendant's head and

ripped his shirt,

Due to the fact Gina had admitted to breaking the picture frame over Defendant's
head, she was arrested for Battery Domestic Violence. The police impounded the firearms

that were in the house—including the firearm Defendant would later use to shoot Gina—for

safekeeping due to the domestic violence issue. Defendant later told a co-worker that he had
talked the police out of arresting him and arresting Gina.

On December 6, 2000, Defendant applied for and received a Temporary Protective

woe 1y Lt B W N

Order against Gina. His basis for the Temporary Protective Order was the Battery Domestic

—
o

Violence that occurred the day before. On December 11, 2000, Defendant filed for a divorce

—
—

with the aid of an attorney. Gina was not represented by counsel. The divorce was

—
N

uncontested and on December 12, 2000, the final decree of divorce was entered in which

S
(W8]

Defendant was given primary physical custody of Nicholas and the family residence on

[S—
N

Wintry Garden Avenue.

p—
Lh

In the meantime, Gina obtained an apartment on the other side of town and proceeded

—
=)

on with her life. On several occasions from December 5 to December 20, Defendant

[
|

contacted the police attempting to get the impounded fircarms back. Due to the fact

[
o0

Defendant had a clean background check and Gina was deemed the primary aggressor in the

—
O

domestic violence, the firearms were returned to Defendant on December 20, 2000.

[y
o

On Wednesday, December 20, 2000, Gina was scheduled to pick up Nicholas for

38
—

visitation. Gina called her friend, Trisha Miller, and told her that she would pick up

3]
XS]

Nicholas and meet her and her parents for dinner around 7:00 o'clock. Shortly before 7:00

(o]
W

p.m. on December 20th, Gina arrived at Defendant's home at 8720 Wintry Garden Avenue to

()
g

pick up her son. Defendant's parents, Alfred Centofanti, Jr. (hereinafter “Alfred Jr.”), and

[o%]
h

Camille Centofanti (hereinafter “Camille™), were watching television upstairs on the second

N
(=)}

floor of the house. Camille and Alfred Jr. heard no arguing or yelling prior to hearing

[\
~J

gunshots and did not even know that Gina had arrived at the home.
"o

N
oe

4 PAWPDOCSMOTIONG0GI0009 do

Appellants  Appendix Volume 12, Page 114




Pk

S O o Sy i R W o

Defendant and Gina were alone in the downstairs family room. Defendant produced a
firearm recovered from the police earlier in the day—and shot Gina several times. Gina was
shot in the head, chest, arm, finger, and back. The State’s pathologist Lary Simms testified
that one of the body shots severed Gina’s aorta and likely incapacitated her. The gunshots to
the head included shots to the temple, cheek, and jaw that evidence indicated came from
point blank range. Other gunshot wounds also indicated that at least some of the shots were
fired at point blank range.

After hearing gunshots, Alfred Jr. ran downstairs to find Defendant with the 9mm
Ruger in his hands. Defendant’s family called 911, initially hung-up and called again.
Around the same time, Alfred Jr. called Defendant’s boss, Eva Cisneros, a local attorney for
help. Defendant’s parents took him next door to the neighbors’ house. Camille told the
neighbors that Defendant had shot Gina.

By the time the police arrived, Gina was dead. As soon as police walked into the
neighbor’s house, Alfred Jr. blurted out “I can’t believe he shot her,” referring to Defendant.
Defendant was sitting next to the murder weapon wrapped in a blue towel. Later, Camille
stated “I can’t believe he shot Gina,” again referring to Defendant. There was no sign of
forced entry into the Centofanti home. Defendant was subsequently placed into custody.

ARGUMENT

DEFENDANT’SPURPORTED USE OF DEF ENSEATTORNEYS

Defendant is seeking to usurp the district court’s role in making the ultimate
determination of whether his former trial counsel performance was deficient per Strickland

v.Washington, by using other defense practitioners to define objective reasonableness. The

issue of whether Defendant’s former trial counsel performance was objectively reasonable is

strictly a matter of law and therefore to be determined by the court. Defendant’s use of

? The State would note that Nevada Supreme Court found the evidence against Defendant was “voluminous.” See Order
of Affirmance for Centofanti v. State, S.Ct. #44984 (Dec. 27, 2006)

5 PAWPDOCSMOTION06GI0009 dos

Appellant's  Appendix Volume 12, Page 115




OO0 O~ N h A W N

(ST S S T T v TR NG S N B 5 R N S e T e N e B e ool g
OO'\]O\U‘I-PWN*—‘O\DOO‘-JO\U'I-BWNF-‘O

experts in such a manner is inappropriate and therefore this honorable court should strike
Defendant’s experts.

NRS 48.025(2) states “[e]vidence which is not relevant is not admissible.” NRS
50.275 states that an expert may testify “if scientific, technical or other specialized
knowledge will assist the trier of fact to understand the evidence or to determine a fact in
issue, a witness qualified as an expert by special knowledge, skill, experience, training or
education may testify to matters within the scope of such knowledge.” The Nevada Supreme
Court has held that it is within the district court’s discretion to determine whether or not to
admit expert testimony, as well as whether a witness is qualified to be an expert in the first
place. In re Mosley, 120 Nev. 908, 921, 102 P.3d 555, 564 (2004).

In the Mosley matter, the Nevada Supreme Court upheld a Commission of Judicial
Discipline’s decision not to hear from an expert witness stating that “Judicial conduct
organizations often have the difficult job of determining ethical issues of first impression in
their states, or perhaps, nationally. That important job should not be delegated to an expert

witness in a proceeding.” In re Mosley, 120 Nev. at 921, 102 P.3d at 564 (2004). The

Nevada Supreme Court has long held that it is inappropriate for an attorney to testify at trial

about a matter of law that was to be decided by the court. State v. Justice Court of Carson

Tp., 29 Nev. 191, 87 P. 1 (1906) (finding that it was inappropriate to have the attorney ofa
defendant, sued in justice court for trespass to land, to testify that from his examination of
the documentary evidence it was apparent that plaintiff did not have title to all the lands,
since it was not testimony of a fact, but the mere opinion of the attorney on a matter of law).
In this case, this court has ordered an evidentiary hearing to inquire into Defendant’s
claims of ineffective counsel at trial. Defendant is seeking to introduce the testimony of
“experts” to make the determination whether “defense counsels’ performance in representing
Petitioner in this case fell below the objective standard of reasonableness as set forth in

Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984).” This is ultimately a matter of law to be

determined by the district court and not attorneys hired by Defendant for the purposes of an

evidentiary hearing.
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Strickland and its progeny set out clear criteria for this court to consider while making

the determination of whether Defendant’s former trial counsel’s performance fell below the
standard of reasonableness. In considering whether trial counsel has met this standard, the
court should first determine whether counsel made a “sufficient inquiry into the information
that is pertinent to his client's case.” Doleman v State, 112 Nev. 843, 846, 921 P.2d 278, 280
(1996), (citing, Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690-691, 104 S.Ct. at 2066). Once such a reasonable

inquiry has been made by counsel, the court should consider whether counsel made “a
reasonable strategy decision on how to proceed with his client's case.” Doleman, 112 Nev.

at 846, 921 P.2d at 280, (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690-691, 104 S.Ct. at 2066). Finally,

counsel's strategy decision is a “tactical” decision and will be “virtually unchallengeable
absent extraordinary circumstances.” Doleman, 112 Nev. at 846, 921 P.2d at 280; Howard
v. State, 106 Nev. 713, 722, 800 P.2d 175, 180 (1990); Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691, 104 S.Ct.
at 2066.

Courts should not “second guess reasoned choices between trial tactics” or fault
defense counsel for not “making every conceivable motion no matter how remote the

possibilities are of success.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708, 711 (1978).

In essence, the court must “judge the reasonableness of counsel's challenged conduct on the
facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time of counsel's conduct.” Strickland, 466 U.S.
at 690, 104 S.Ct. at 2066.

Moreover, “(t)here are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given
case. Even the best criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the
same way.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S.Ct. at 689. “Strategic choices made by
counsel after thoroughly investigating the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.”
Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992), (citing Strickland, 466 U.S.
at 690, 104 S. Ct. at 2066); see also Ford v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784 P.2d 951, 953
(1989).

Similarly to In_re Mosley, this court must make a crucial decision regarding the

performance of Defendant’s former trial counsel during a first degree murder case.
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Ultimately, it is this court’s decision to determine whether Defendant’s former counsel’s

representation was objectively reasonable, just as it is the court’s decision to determine

whether Defendant was prejudiced by any such deficient performance. It is not appropriate

to have an expert stand-in for the court to make such a determination of law. The testimonies
of such experts are irrelevant. Other courts have similarly rejected using outside counsel as

expert witnesses at an evidentiary hearing for ineffective counsel. See Lynch v. State, 2

S0.3d 47, 81 (Fla. 2008) (lower court did not err in precluding expert testimony from an
attorney regarding the prevailing norms of capital representation). For the reasons set forth
above, this honorable court should strike Defendant’s experts.
CONCLUSION
WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, the State respectfully requests that this

Honorable Court grant this Motion to Strike Defendant’s Experts and preclude Messers.
Oram and Lukens from testifying at the evidentiary hearing set for July 30, 2010 at 9 AM.
DATED this___ 28th day of July, 2010.

Respectfully submitted,

DAVID ROGER
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #002781

BY%

J. \'Y Z
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #0010747

CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION

I hereby certify that service of State's Motion To Strike Defendant's Experts, was
made this _ 28th day of July, 2010, by facsimile transmission to:

CARMINE J. COLUCCI, ESQ.
FAX #384-4453

Secretary for the DMstiict AMtorney's
Office &

MJS/vs
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1

2 GLERK OF THE COURT

3 DISTRICT COURT

4 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

® % % ®

5

6 State of Nevada, CASE NO.: C172534

; Plaintiff, DEPARTMENT 6

) VS ORDER DENYING PETITION FOR WRIT OF

Alfred P. Centofanti 111, HABEAS CORPUS
9
Defendant.

10
11
. Before the Court is Defendant's Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus, which was fully
13 || briefed by the parties. This is Defendant’s first post-conviction petition. After arguments by

14 || counsel on December 2, 2009 and subsequent discovery proceedings, the Court held an

3 evidentiary hearing on July 30, 2010, and heard closing arguments by the parties on

i: September 24, 2010. In addition to the parties' briefs and the evidence and argument

18 | presented at these hearings, the Court has reviewed the extensive appendix and exhibits

g g g submitted by Defendant, as well as legal authorities pertinent to the decision herein. All
E ; % claims other than ineffective assistance of counsel were previously dismissed by the Court.
= g Defendant seeks to establish that his trial counsel, Allen Bloom, was ineffective, and that a

23 || new trial is mandated as a result. Under the Strickland test, Defendant must establish (1) that

24 I counsel's performance was deficient, and (2) that the deficient performance prejudiced the

22 defense. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052 (1984). The Court can

consider these two elements in any order and need not consider both prongs if there is an

3]
~J

insufficient showing on ¢ither one. In order to establish prejudice, Defendant "must show a

ELISSA F. CADISH
DISTRICT JUDGE
DEPARTMENT VI
()
ce

1
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1 reasonable probability that, but for counsel's errors, the result of the trial would have been
2 || different.” Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 988, 923 P.2d 1102, 1107 (1997).
3 The Court hereby denies the petition because the Court does not find a reasonable
: probability that, but for counsel's alleged errors, the result of the trial would have been
¢ | difterent. In this regard, on Defendant's direct appeal, the Nevada Supreme Court noted
7 || several times the strength of the State's case against Defendant. Order of Affirmance, filed
} 8 December 27, 2006, at 4 ("in light of the strength of State's case against Centofanti, we
‘ 12 consider any error harmless"), 5 ("the evidence against Centofanti was voluminous"), 8
11 || ("Here we conclude that any exposure Juror Wheeler had to extrinsic information through
12 the purported firearm experiment was minimal in the context of the trial as a whole,
= considering the overwhelming evidence supporting Centofanti's conviction"), and 10 n.25
i: ("We conclude that because of the evidence against Centofanti, his contention that
16 || cumulative error requires a new trial is without merit."). This Court agrees that the record
17V reveals overwhelming evidence supporting Defendant's conviction. Thus, while Defendant
i has raised some issues regarding counsel's performance that give the Court pause, prejudice
20 || has not been established.
21 The Court will specifically address some of the more significant issues raised by the
22 Defendant. First, Defendant asserts that counsel's performance was deficient in relying on a
ii self-defense theory at the trial. While the Court agrees that it was very difficult to try to
25 | establish self-defense under the applicable legal standard in this case, counsel also argued
. 26 || that Defendant did not have the requisite state of mind for first degree murder and argued for
é%% 27 second degree murder or manslaughter as well. Additionally, it is suggested a diminished
%’ % % 28
384 5
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capacity defense should have been pursued. However, trial counsel testified that a
psychological evaluation had been obtained pre-trial but was not helpful, and it was a
reasonable strategy not to present it, particularly since it would have likely opened up the
Defendant to examination by the State through its psychologist. Moreover, as a practical
matter, this type of defense would have also required Defendant to testify as he did in this
trial. Most importantly, there is no showing of what evidence would have been relied on for
this proposed defense that would have a probability of a different outcome. Similarly, with
respect to allegations that counsel did not adequately investigate the case or gather records to
support Defendant's testimony, there is no showing of what any such investigation would
have revealed that would have been helpful.

The Court is concerned about the self-defense canvass at the hearing on March 12,
2004, where Defendant was required to acknowledge on the record in front of the State that
he was the shooter in order to allow the presentation of self-defense at trial. However,
counsel had previously objected to this process when it was raised the first time by the State,
and noted an objection on the record at this hearing, after there had apparently been an off-
the-record discussion about this matter in chambers. Accordingly, counsel was not
ineffective in this regard but instead his objections were overruled. It should be noted that
this matter was not raised on appeal, a matter that is not raised in the instant petition.

Next, Defendant complains about the fact counsel stated in the trial that he was going
to call Lieutenant Steve Franks as an expert regarding officer-involved shootings to help
explain Defendant’s shooting in this case, but then did not have him testify. Counsel told the

Court in the jury’s presence that Franks had been subpoenaed, but his wife had become very

3
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1 ill with cancer and, particularly since some of this area had been covered with other
2 || witnesses, he would not be trying to enforce the subpoena and would thus not be presenting
3 Franks as a witness. Counsel had discussed Franks' anticipated testimony in his opening
: statement, and this discussion regarding the reasons for not calling him took place in front of
6 || the jury on April 14, 2004 before Defendant rested. While testimony at this Court's
7 || evidentiary hearing indicated counsel had never spoken to Franks and never served a
8 subpoena on him, counsel's investigator had had general conversations with Franks relating
1(9) to the case. The Court is concerned about the misleading statements made to the Court and
11 || the jury, but there is no showing of prejudice from failing to have him testify or from
12 | mentioning his anticipated testimony in the opening.
ii Finally, an issue is raised regarding the fact Defendant testified at trial that he had
15 been told by the victim's plastic surgeon, Dr. Sessions, that the victim had a hole in her nose
16 | septum from drug use. At a pretrial hearing, the State objected to this anticipated testimony
17 | because there had been no medical records showing this nose condition. At the hearing,
E counsel represented that he had received Dr. Sessions' records, and that the records did show
20 | @ perforated septum. Based on this representation as an officer of the Court, the Court said
21 || he would allow the Defendant's testimony in this regard since there was a basis for the
22 allegation. Transcript of Hearing of March 12, 2004, at 19. After Defendant testified to this
22 matter at trial, and was vigorously cross-examined about it, the State brought Dr. Sessions to
25 || testify in rebuttal. He testified that there was no hole in the victim’s nose and that he had
- s 26 || never told Defendant any such thing. No records were used by Defendant's counsel to cross-
Z
%% % Z examine Dr. Sessions nor were they ever put in evidence. Indeed, the records are still not
ZAA 4
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before this Court, and they apparently were not in trial counsel's file that was turned over to
his current counsel. Additionally, trial counsel apparently never tried to speak to Dr.
Sessions regarding these matters in advance of trial. This issue was argued by the State in
closing as showing a lack of credibility on the part of the Defendant. However, Defendant
still insists that the conversation with Dr. Sessions did take place, but asserts counse!l should
have prepared him for Dr. Sessions' contrary belief. Again, these misleading statements by
counsel regarding corroboration in the medical records arc of great concern to the Court.
However, the statements by counsel regarding having the records were not made before the
jury, and Defendant’s credibility was weak even absent this particular dispute. Given the
overwhelming evidence in this case, this Court does not find a probability that the result
would have been different if not for this issue.

The Court has reviewed all other arguments presented by Defendant and similarly
finds that the required prejudice has not been demonstrated. Accordingly, the Defendant’s

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus is denied, and his conviction stands.

Il
7

ELISSA F. CADISH, DISTRICT JUDGE

Dated this 9th day of May, 2011

5
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ELISSA F. CADISH
DISTRICT JUDGE
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the date filed, I electronically served, mailed to the following proper
persons, or placed a copy of this order in the attorney’s folder in the Clerk's Office as
follows:

Michael Schwartzer, Assistant District Attorney
Carmine J. Colucci, Esq.

T TR
Timothy D. Kelley
Judicial Executive Assistant
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CARMINE J. COLUCCI CHTD.
CARMINE J. COLUCCI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar #000881

629 South Sixth Street FiLED

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

(702) 384-1274
Fax: (702) 384-4453 Ny - 2009
Attorney for Petitioner .
ALFRED P. CENTOFANTI III c‘?%;g,-%
AT
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ALFRED P. CENTOFANTI III, CASE NO. C172534
DEPT NO. VI

Hearing Date: 12/2/10
Hearing Time: 9:30 a.m.

Petitioner,
Vs.

E.K. McDANIEL, WARDEN,
ELY STATE PRISON,

Respondent.

e oo Yt et it et Vit i gt

PETITIONER’S REPLY TO RESPONDENT’S ANSWER TO
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)

Comes now, Petitioner ALFRED P. CENTOFANTI, III, hereinafter referred to as
Petitioner, by and through his attorney, Carmine J. Colucci, Esq., of the law firm of
Carmine J. Colucci, Chtd., and respectfully files his Reply to Respondent’s Answer to
Petitioner’s Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).

This Reply is brought pursuant to the attached Memorandum of Points and
Authorities, all papers and pleadings on file with the Court, and any additional
argument and/or evidence presented at the hearing of this matter.

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
INTRODUCTION

Respondent, has filed an Answer to Petitioner’s Writ of Habeas corpus (Post

Conviction). Petitioner asserts that for the reasons set forth in the Petition and the
1
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11
12
13
14
15
16
17
(8
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction) and this Reply, he should be discharged from his
confinement. Since Petitioner has asserted claims of ineffective assistance of counsel
which will require proof of facts outside of the record, this Court should grant leave for
the Petitioner to propound discovery under NRS 34.780 and then schedule an
evidentiary hearing during which Petitioner can submit the necessary proofin the form
of witnesses, documents and other evidence so this Court can fully evaluate the merits
of his claims and then grant him the relief that he seeks. The refusal to grant an
evidentiary hearing will deny Petitioner his right to due process and will preclude him
from meeting his burden of proof.

ADDITIONAL FACTS AND ARGUMENT

For ease of reference, Petitioner will utilize, in this Reply, the same numerical
and alphabetical system that the Respondent has used in its Response/Answer.

Preliminarily, it should be noted by the Court that the Respondent has an
incorrect caption “The STATE OF NEVADA v. ALFRED CENTOFANTI II1.” Since this
1s a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction), Mr. Centofanti is the
Petitioner and E.K. McDaniel, the Warden of the Prison, where Mr. Centofanti is
presently being held, is the Respondent. Therefore the proper caption is “ALFRED P.
CENTOFANTI, 111, Petitioner v. E.K. McDANIEL, Respondent.” The State of Nevada is
not a party to this action and is statutorily precluded from being a party.

The District Attorney’s Office has also entitled it’s pleading as an Opposition
instead of an Answer/Response as required by NRS 34.745. Respondent’s counsel has
also insisted on referring to Mr. Centofanti as the “Defendant” throughout its
Opposition instead of properly referring to him as “Petitioner,” which he is.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

It should be noted by the Court that Petitioner was charged by way of Criminal
Complaint with “Open Murder.” With respect to Petitioner’s appeal, the Nevada

Supreme Court issued its Remittitur on March 27, 2007, therefore the filing of the Writ

2
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15
16
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20

22
23
24
25
26

27

of Habeas Corpus on February 29, 2008, was timely. The scheduling of the hearing
on this Petition has been delayed due to the filing by Petitioner of a Petition for Writ of
Mandamus which was recently decided by the Nevada Supreme Court.
I.
GROUNDS ONE THROUGH FIVE SHOULD BE ADDRESSED ON THE MERITS
A, This Court is Not Precluded from Re-considering the Claims
Regarding the Motion for New Trial.

Petitioner has made a prima facie case that the District Attorney’s Office
prevented Petitioner and his counsel from properly presenting the claims of juror
misconduct to the trial court due to prosecutorial misconduct. The State continuously
advised the District Court that Juror Barrs was not a convicted felon when it was
proven beyond any doubt that she was. Therefore, this Court should allow Petitioner
and his counsel to conduct the necessary discovery to gather the necessary witnesses,
documents and other evidence to present this claim properly in this proceeding so that
evidence may be taken. See Ground Three of the Petition, pages 43-58.

Since Petitioner can prove malfeasance on behalf of the District Attorney’s office,
with respect to the jury misconduct issues: 1) The felon juror, Caren Barrs, (see pages
44-48 of the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) ; 2) The T-Shirt issue, “Do you know what a murderer
looks like (see pages 48-49 of the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support
of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus; 3) Sleeping Jurors (see page 49 of the
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction) and 4) The firearm experiment (see page 50 of the
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction). This Court could properly re-consider this claim since it was
never properly considered in the first instance by the District Judge who did not

conduct an evidentiary hearing under the mistaken reason that the Motion for New

11177
[
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Trial was barred by the 7-day rule for filing it.'

Furthermore, the law of the case doctrine, cited to by the Respondent, however,
1s not absolute and since the Nevada Supreme Court has the discretion to revisit the
wisdom of its legal conclusions if warranted, so should this Court if the facts and
circumstances warrant it. See, Bejarano V. State, 122 Nev. 1066, 1074, 146 P.3d 265,
271 (2006).

B. Grounds One, Two, Four and Five are not waived and should be

addressed on the merits.

Respondent’s reliance on Nevada case law, as opposed to United States Supreme
Court precedent is misplaced. Petitioner has made a prima facie showing that the
factual and legal basis for his claims were not available at the time his appeal was filed,
thus satisfying the tests set forth in the United States Supreme Court cases of Reed
v. Ross, 468 U.S. 1, 104 S.Ct. 2901, 82 L. Ed. 2d 1 (1984) and Dugger v. Adams, 489
U.S. 401, 109 S. Ct. 1211, 103 L. Ed 2d 435 (1989). Therefore, this Court should
consider Grounds One, Two, Four and Five on the merits.

Furthermore, Petitioner can and will demonstrate to this Court both good cause
and prejudice for failing to raise the claims previously, which allows this Court to

consider them on the merits. See NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2); See, also Mazzan v. Warden,

112 Nev. 838, 842, 921 P.2d 920, 922 (1996); and Nika v. State, 124 Nev. Adv. Rep.
103, 198 P.3d 839 (2008).
1. The Disqualification of Daniel J. Albregts.

Petitioner incorporates pages 15-30 of the Memorandum of Points and

Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as

'Petitioner now seeks an evidentiary hearing as to issue of the various
instances of juror misconduct, so that it can be determined when the State was
made aware of them before or during trial. Petitioner is entitled to an evidentiary
hearing since he has asserted a colorable claim for relief because he has never had
the opportunity to develop a factual record on this claim. See, e.g. Siripongs v.
Calderon, 35 F.3d 1308, 1310 (9" Cir. 1994).
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though fully set forth herein. Respondent fails to address this claim on the merits and
therefore pursuant to Rule 2.20 of the Eighth Judicial District Court Rule this “may
be construed as an admission” that it is meritorious and can act as “a consent to
granting the same.” Specifically, Respondent fails to address any of the substantiated
allegations regarding the misconduct of the Clark County District Attorney’s Office in
improperly securing the disqualification of Daniel J. Albregts. See Memorandum of
Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-
Conviction), pages 15-16; also see Exhibit 8, page 4, line 7, to page 5, line 2).

Specifically, the District Attorney’s Office vigorously sought the disqualification
despite the fact that they had the necessary facts, documents (the documents
pertaining to the real estate transaction in question), and witnesses (i.e., the real estate
agent and financial officers involved in the transaction, the purchaser of the property
and others) which clearly established that attorney Albregts had absolutely nothing to
do with the transaction and would not be needed or called as a necessary or
indispensable witness at any time during the trial. See Exhibit 12 (hereinafter referred
to as AA) to Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) Vol. 2, pp. 1-7.

Furthermore, and more importantly, a fact well known to the District Attorney’s
Office, attorney Albregts would not have been required to testify if the attorney-client
privilege was invoked. Therefore, it was an abuse of discretion to disqualify counsel
under the guise of the potential of calling him as a witness, when in fact he was not,
and could not be called as such. Id.? Finally, the State, incredulously, claimed that

Albregts was not only not a witness but Petitioner could not claim advice of counsel as

%It should be noted that Deputy District Attorney Christopher Laurent
conducted, with the approval of then Judge Gibbons, a canvass of Petitioner in
open court regarding whether or not he approved of the pleadings filed on his behalf
by attorney Albregts, who like the court did not intervene or object. Petitioner
responded “yes” which apparently led to their pursuit of the disqualification, which
was improper.

5
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a defense. See Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction), pp. 20-21.

A. There was Good Cause for Not Raising the Disqualification Issue Earlier.

Petitioner had good cause for not raising the disqualification issue on direct
appeal. “Good cause” for failing to file a timely habeas petition or to raise a claim in
a previous proceeding, which is necessary to excuse a procedural default, may be
established where the factual or legal basis for the claim was not reasonably available.
Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. 1066, 146 P.3d 265 (2006). Ineffective assistance of
counsel also provides the “good cause” necessary to excuse a procedural default. See

Loveland v. Hatcher, 231 F.3d 640, 645 (C.A. 9 (Nev.) 2000).

Here it is undisputed that the decision of the United States Supreme in United

States v. Gonzalez-Lopez, 548 U.S. 140, 126 S.Ct. 2557, 165 L.Ed.2d 409 (2006) was

not available to Petitioner’s counsel at the time of the disqualification by Judge
Gibbons in 2002 or at the time of the filing of the Appeal in 2005, therefore the legal

basis of the claim was not only not “reasonably available” but not available at all.

Prior to the Supreme Court’s decision in United States v. Gonzalez-Lopez, 548
U.5.140, 126 S.Ct. 2557, 165 L.Ed. 2d 409 (2006}, the federal circuits had split as to
whether a defendant claiming a denial of the right to counsel of choice had to show the
same sort of prejudice as a defendant claiming ineffective assistance of counsel. See

Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984). In

Gonzales-Lopez, the Supreme Court held in the negative, stating that the right to
counsel of choice is an independent Sixth Amendment right and that the denial of such
right constitutes a structural error. 126 S.Ct. At 2562-65.

Furthermore, since that decision was issued before Petitioner’s Direct Appeal
became final, its holding is available to Petitioner for relief. See, generally, Danforth

v. Minnesota, 552 U.S. 264, 128 S.Ct. 1029, 1035, 169 L.Ed.2d 859 (2008).

Therefore, Petitioner has demonstrated “good cause” for the failure to raise the

claim earlier as the legal basis of relief under Gonzalez-Lopez was not yet available.

6
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B. Petitioner Will Be Prejudiced if the Issue is Not Heard by the Court.

As mentioned above, Petitioner can and will demonstrate that the disqualification
of attorney Albregts was and is erroneous and was sought in bad faith. In sum, he was
not a necessary or essential witness for either the trial of Petitioner or for the issue of
any malfeasance as alleged by Petitioner related to the real estate transaction at issue.
Furthermore, any so called waiver was accomplished by an improper canvass of
Petitioner which was conducted by the District Attorney’s Office and the Court in
violation of Petitioner’s Fifth Amendment Right to remain silent and his Sixth
Amendment right to counsel.

Finally, the State has taken inconsistent positions relative to the necessity of
Albregts as a witness, essentially waiting until after the disqualification was
accomplished to admit he was not going to be called as a witness. Since Petitioner has
established the fact of the erroneous disqualification, prejudice is presumed as set
forth in the above cited cases.

In United States v. Gonzalez-Lopez, the United States Supreme Court held that
once it is determined that the disqualification is erroneous, no additional showing of
prejudice was required. Specifically, the Court held “erroneous deprivation of the right
to counsel of choice” is a “structural error” in violation of the Sixth Amendment and
is not subject to harmless-error analysis. United States v. Gonzalez-Lopez, 548 U.S.

140, 150-52, 126 S.Ct. 2557, 165 L.Ed. 2d 409 (2006).

Here, Petitioner has set forth the necessary facts, documents, and other evidence
(such as references to the portions of the transcripts relating to the disqualification)
in his Petition to demonstrate that the disqualification was both erroneous and
requested and conducted in bad faith by the Clark County District Attorney’s Office.
Furthermore, as stated above, attorney-client privilege would have prevented Albregts
from testifying or revealing his communications with Petitioner and, that, in any event,
evidence on the issues was available to the State through numerous other sources.

Petitioner can make the requisite showing of prejudice. In a pre-trial hearing,
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Judge Gibbons ruled that Albregts would not be allowed in the courtroom. See
Criminal Court Minutes, AA Vol. 1, p. 14. The Supreme Court has repeatedly held that
a defendant’s Sixth Amendment right to counsel is violated if the defendant is unable
to communicate with his or her counsel during key trial preparation times. See

Riggins v. Nevada, 504 U.S. 127, 144, 112 S.Ct. 1810, 118 L.Ed.2d 479 (1992). “We

have held that a defendant’s right to the effective assistance of counsel is impaired
when he cannot cooperate in an active manner with his lawyer.” “The defendant must
be able to provide needed information to his lawyer and to participate in the making

of decisions on his own behalf.” (Citations omitted); United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S.

648, 639, n. 25, 104 S.Ct. 2039, 80 L.Ed. 2d 657 (1984) (“The Court has uniformly
found constitutional error without any showing of prejudice when counsel was . . .

prevented from assisting the accused during a critical stage of the proceeding.”);

Geders v. United States, 425 U.S. 80, 91, 96 S.Ct. 1330, 47 L.Ed. 2d 592 (1976)

(holding that trial judge’s order that counsel could not communicate with defendant
during overnight recess in the middle of trial violated defendant’s Sixth Amendment
right).

Petitioner was prevented from communicating with Albregts during critical stages
of the proceeding, including, but not limited to, with respect to the issue of the legality
of canvassing and of Petitioner being improperly advised that he must waive his rights
and testify, otherwise a defense of self-defense could not presented. Furthermore, it
is undisputed that among Petitioner’s counsel, Albregts was the most experienced
attorney in issues of criminal law in Nevada, and would not have improperly advised
Petitionier. Therefore, the exclusion of Albregts by the Court, at critical stages
throughout the proceedings, violated Petitioner’s Sixth Amendment right to counsel.

Therefore, since Petitioner has shown both cause and prejudice, this matter
should be heard on its merits in an evidentiary hearing as Petitioner has requested.

2. The Trial Court’s Canvass of Defendant Regarding Self-Defense.

Petitioner incorporates pages 30-43 of the Memorandum of Points and

8
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Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein.

A. There was Good Cause for Not Raising the Canvass Issue Earlier.

The request for and the conducting of the canvass on whether Petitioner would
admit to being the shooter and consent to the defense of self-defense, was not objected
to, by trial counsel, and was allowed to proceed and was made part of the record. See
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction), pp. 30-34; also see Exhibit 9 to Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction),
Reporter’s Transcript, March 12, 2004). This was the product of ineffective assistance
of counsel, and since not objected to it, was not subject to review on direct appeal.®
Using this petition is the proper way to bring this matter to the court’s attention.

“Good cause” for failing to raise a claim in a previous proceeding, which is
necessary to excuse a procedural default, may be established where the factual or legal

basis for the claim was not reasonably available. Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. 106, 146

P.3d 265 (2006). Ineffective assistance of counsel also provides the “good cause”
necessary to excuse a procedural default. See Loveland v. Hatcher, 231 F.3d 640, 645
(C.A. 9 (Nev. 2000).

The legal basis for this ground was not previously available to Petitioner on direct
appeal since his trial counsel failed to properly object to it at trial, which was

ineffective assistance of counsel. A claim of ineffective assistance of counsel may also

*Petitioner notes that Respondent cites to the case of Ennis v. State in
support of its assertion (made almost 20 times throughout the improperly titled
“Opposition”) that futile objections need not be made to avoid ineffective assistance
of counsel claims. This case focused on the failure to object to hearsay on the
grounds set forth in the U.S. Supreme Court decision in Crawford v. Washington.
In Ennts, the Nevada Supreme Court ruled that the failure to object was not
ineffective because Crawford was subsequently determined not to be retroactive
(although see Danforth v. Minnesota). That is not the case here, and therefore
Ennis is inapplicable to the facts and circumstances at hand.

9
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excuse a procedural default if counsel was so ineffective as to violate the Sixth

Amendment. Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 71 P.3d 503, 506 (Nev. 2003); Edwards

v. Carpenter, 529 U.S. 446, 451, 120 S.Ct. 1587, 146 L. Ed. 2d 518 (2000) (citing
Carrier, 477 U.S. at 488-489, 106 S.Ct. 2639); See also Crump v. Warden, 113 Nev.
293, 304, 934 P.2d 247, 253 (1997).

Petitioner’s trial counsel did object to the State’s oral request for the canvass in
Defendant’s Response to the Prosecution’s Request that Defendant be “Canvassed” by
the Court filed on December 26, 2001 (AA Vo. 2, pp. 1-7), but when the Court called
a recess in the proceedings held on March 12, 2004, Bloom improperly advised
Petitioner that he had to consent to the canvass or would not be allowed to present a
self-defense at trial. The failure to properly object, to properly advise Petitioner of his
right to remain silent, and to require the prosecution to prove each and every element
of the charges against him instead of advising Petitioner to admit to being the shooter,
was per se ineffective assistance of counsel, and provides “good cause” for not raising
the issues on direct appeal since trial counsel failed to preserve this issue by valid
objection. See Loveland v. Hatcher, 231 F.3d 640, 645 (C.A. 9 (Nev.) 2000); See, also
Girts v. Yanai, 501 F.3d 743, 757 (C.A. 6 (Ohio) 2007).

B. Petitioner Will Be Prejudiced if This Issue is Not Heard.

“Actual prejudice” from the claimed error, as an element of the “good cause”
exception to the procedural bar to bringing in a habeas corpus proceeding claims that
could have been raised at trial or on direct appeal, requires a showing not merely that
the error complained of created a possibility of prejudice, but that that it worked to the
petitioner’s actual and substantial disadvantage, in affecting the state proceeding with
error of constitutional dimensions. State v, Williams, 120 Nev. 473, 93 P.3d 1258
(2004), certiorari denied 125 S.Ct. 409, 543 U.S. 958, 160 L.Ed. 2d 321.

Here, Petitioner was improperly advised by his trial counsel that he had to
consent and go on the record with respect to the district attorney’s and Court’s novel

idea of “canvassing” him pretrial as to his consent to a particular defense. No

10
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authority existed at that, or any time, including now, to authorize the district
attorney’s office to ask for the canvass or for the court to conduct one. By allowing this
to occur, Petitioner’s Fifth Amendment right to remain silent, Sixth Amendment right
to counsel,® and the Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendment rights to due process and
a fair trial were all violated. Not only was the canvass illegal, but it did not comply with
the mandates of the United States Supreme Court,® as it lessened the burden of the
prosecution because it forced Petitioner to plead guilty (to the shooting) without the
benefit of a trial and without the assistance of effective counsel. It also did not allow
Petitioner the option of presenting any other defenses that may have been available to
him at the close of the State’s case.

The only court to address the issue of the adequacy of the plea canvass, in terms
of ineffective assistance of counsel, was the Ninth Circuit in Womack v. McDaniel, 497
F.3d 998, 1003 (C.A.9 (Nev.) 2007). That case is distinguishable due to the fact that
a proper plea canvass was given pursuant to a guilty plea. The Court found that
“le]ven if Womack’s counsel’s performance were somehow deemed ineffective, Womack
was not prejudiced by his counsel’s performance because the plea agreement and the
state district court’s plea canvass alerted Womack to the potential consequences of his
guilty plea. Id. At 497 F.3d 998, 1003 (C.A.9 (Nev.)2007).

Here, the District Court allowed the canvass to take place by way of an oral

motion by the District Attorney’s Office with some vague reference, by the prosecutor,

*The Sixth Amendment right to counsel attaches at the initiation of adversary
judicial criminal proceedings. See, e.g., United States v. Harrison, 213 F.3d 1206,
1209 (9™ Cir. 2000). Once the right to counsel has attached, the state may not take
actions “designed deliberately to elicit incriminating remarks.” Kuhlmann v.
Wilson, 477 U.S. 436, 459, 106 S.Ct. 2616, 91 L.Ed.2d 364 (1986). Sece also Cahill
v. Rushen, 678 F.2d 791, 793 (9™ Cir. 1982). This inquiry is objective and does not
focus on the subjective intentions of the state officer. See United States v. Harris,
738 F.2d 1068, 1071 (9™ Cir. 1984); Beaty v. Stewart, 303 F.3d 975, 991 (C.A. 9
(Ariz.) 2002).

*Boykin, 395 U.S. at 243-44, 89 S.Ct. 1709; See also Brady v. United States,
397 U.5. 742, 748, 90 S.Ct. 1463, 25 L.Ed.2d 747 (1970).

11
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to “a case” which allowed for the canvass (AA Vol. 1, p. 202 at pp. 251-252), and
therefore Petitioner was not “alerted to the possible consequences” in writing (i.e. the
plea agreement in Womack) and it was not something that was “negotiated” but was
presented to Petitioner as an “all or nothing” scenario. The situation was that he
would be canvassed or would not be allowed to present his defense. This constituted
improper coercion and resulted in the violation of Petitioner’s rights under the Fifth,
Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments of the Constitution of the United States.

Petitioner was never provided with a written motion to respond to and was not
given advance notice regarding the State’s intent to coerce him to waive his Fifth
Amendment right to remain silent and his Sixth Amendment right to counsel and a fair
trial, not to mention his waiver of his rights to due process and a fair hearing on the
issue of the canvass. Unlike in Womack, Petitioner was not advised in writing of the
consequences of going forward with the plea, and was prejudiced by the actions of both
the district attorney’s office and the District Court.

The prejudice is clear. Defense counsel had Petitioner consent to a defense,
which counsel knew at the time he asked Petitioner to put his consent on the
record, was not supported by the evidence that defense counsel intended to present
at trial. Even as cited to in here and in his Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction), Petitioner’s own expert
had advised trial counsel, three years before trial commenced, that self-defense was
not a viable defense, yet trial counsel inexplicably called him to so testify at trial (AA
Vol. 5, pp. 20-22 at pp. 75-78; AA Vol. 5, p. 24 at pp. 90-92). This fell below the
standard of effectiveness as expressed in Strickland as it assured Petitioner’s

conviction. Just as the Court stated in the case of Awkal v. Mitchell, “Once the jury

heard one of Awkal’s own witnesses state that Awkal was sane at the time of the crime,

no strategy could have saved his sole defense.” Awkal v. Mitchell, 559 F.3d 468 (C.A.6

(Ohio) 2009). Here, once the jury heard Petitioner’s own expert state that he could not

support that the decedent had threatened him (justifying self-defense), the trial was

12
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over. In the instant case, this opinion was known to defense counsel in 2001, and vet
he went forward with the canvass and the trial in 2004 with the same expert who, in
2001, would not support the defense. The trial was over before it ever began.

Given the fact that trial counsel knew before trial that his own expert’s testimony
would completely eviscerate the sole defense, the decision to put that expert on the
stand was “objectively unreasonable,” regardless of whether defense counsel knew or
should have known the contents of that expert’s opinion. Combs, 205 F.3d at 288.
And the decision to allow Petitioner to be canvassed was also “objectively
unreasonable” and was clearly prejudicial ineffective assistance of counsel.

Therefore, since Petitioner has shown both “good cause” and “prejudice,” this
matter should be heard on its merits.

3. Jury Instructions Minimized the State’s Burden of Proof.

Petitioner incorporates pages 59-70 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein.

A. There was Good Cause for Not Raising the Jury Instruction Issue Earlier.

“Good cause” for failing to file a timely habeas petition or raise a claim in a
previous proceeding, which is necessary to excuse a procedural default, may be
established where the factual or legal basis for the claim was not reasonably available.

Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. 1066, 146 P.3d 265 (2006). Ineffective assistance of

counsel also provides the “good cause” necessary to excuse a procedural default. See

Loveland v. Hatcher, 231 F.3d 640, 645 (C.A.9 (Nev.} 2000).

Here it is undisputed that the decision of the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals in
the decision of Polk v. Sandoval was not available to Petitioner or his counsel at the

time of the filing of the appeal in 2005. In Polk v. Sandoval, 503 F.3d 903,911 (9* Cir.

2007}, the Ninth Circuit held that the same jury instruction on premeditation given at
Petitioner’s trial. See Jury Instruction 14 attached hereto as Exhibit 13). Also see

page 62 of the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ
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of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction), and at issue here was constitutionally defective,
and the State district court’s failure to correct the error “was contrary to clearly
established federal law, as determined by the Supreme Court.”

B. Petitioner Will Be Prejudiced If This Issue Is Not Heard.

The prejudice to Petitioner is clear from the record of the proceedings. As cited
to in the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction), the faulty jury instruction combined with the State’s
arguments to the jury in closing precluded a finding of a lesser degree of murder or of
manslaughter, thereby prejudicing Petitioner. As the Ninth Circuit recently explained:

Finally, just as in Polk, the State exacerbated the problem in its closing
rebuttal argument by emphasizing the premeditation instruction, as
support for its argument that the jury should find first-degree murder:
‘Premeditation can be successive, instantaneous thoughts of the mind.
Doesn’t require it to be planned. Premeditation is pulling the knife, lifting
your arm, and stabbing. Instantaneous thoughts of the mind to control
movement. That’s all you need for premeditation. You read the law. That’s
what it tells you.’

The State argues that the second-degree murder and manslaughter
instructions given in this case specified the correct definitions and therefore
the jury would have relied on those to clear up any confusion created by the
instruction on premeditation. It belies common sense, however, to believe
that a jury could have ascertained the correct standard for first-degree
murder from a jury instruction for second-degree murder, when the actual
instruction for first-degree murder is defective. Moreover, a review of the
jury instructions shows that the jury was never instructed as to what the
elements of second-degree murder were, but only defined it as “all other
kinds of murder.” Such an instruction would not assist the jury in
ascertaining what the different levels of intent were for first and second-
degree murder.

Chambers v. McDaniel, 549 F.3d 1191, 1200 (C.A. 9 (Nev.) 2008).
Furthermore, the facts and circumstances the Court considered in Chambers
are equally applicable here:

[T]he evidence against [Chambers] was not so great that it precluded a
verdict of second-degree murder. The State’s evidence on deliberation was
particularly weak.” Polk, 503 F.3d at 912. The State cites three pieces of
evidence to support the finding of premeditation: that Chambers stabbed
Chacon seventeen times; that the wounds penetrated three inches into the
body and were located in two separate clusters of wounds; and that
Chambers was not mentally disturbed, but at the most merely drunk.

However, this evidence does not demonstrate the key feature of the element
of deliberation: that of a “dispassionate weighing process and consideration

14
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of consequences before acting.” Byford, 994 P.2d at 714. Although ‘E,]
deliberate determination may be arrived at in a short period of time, . . . the
determination must not be formed in passion, or if formed in passion, it
must be carried out after there has been time for the passion to subside and
deliberation to occur.” 1d.

In light of the weak evidence of deliberation, we simply cannot conclude
that the instructional error was harmless. ‘Since we are left “in grave
doubt” about whether the jury would have found deliberation on
[Chambers’] part if it had been properly instructed, we conclude that the
error had a substantial and injurious effect or influence on the jury’s
verdict.” Polk, 503 F.3d at 913.

Chambers’ federal constitutional due process right was violated by the
instructions given by the trial court at his murder trial, as they permitted
the jury to convict him of first-degree murder without finding separately all
three elements of that crime: willfulness, deliberation, and premeditation.
The error was not harmless.

Chambers v. McDaniel, 549 F.3d 1191, 1200-1201 (C.A. 9 (Nev.) 2008).

This is the same situation which occurred at Petitioner’s trial. The entire case
here focused on Petitioner’s state of mind when he allegedly got into an altercation with
decedent and allegedly shot her multiple times (Chambers had stabbed his alleged
victim seventeen times.) The fact of the alleged homicide was not an issue in either
Petitioner’s case (since he was forced to admit to the shooting in the pre-trial canvass)
or in Chambers, but instead, as in Chambers, Petitioner argued that he acted in self-
defense, while the State was arguing that there was sufficient evidence to show
premeditation. Id. At 1200.

As in Chambers, Petitioner’s federal constitutional due process rights were
violated by the instructions given by the trial court at his murder trial, as they
permitted the jury to convict him of first-degree murder without finding separately all
three separate and necessary elements of that crime: willfulness, deliberation, and
premeditation. Id. At 1201. Since the instructions given were the same, the
arguments given in closing were the same; Petitioner is entitled to the same relief as
in Chambers.

Therefore, since Petitioner has shown both “good cause” and “prejudice,” this

matter should be heard on its merits.
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4. Closing Arguments Did Shift the Burden of Proof to Petitioner.

Petitioner incorporates pages 43-59 of the Memorandum of Points and

Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as

though fully set forth herein.

A. There was Good Cause for Not Raising the Closing Argument Issue

Earlier.

“Good cause” for failing to raise a claim in a previous proceeding, which is

necessary to excuse a procedural default, may be established where the factual or legal

basis for the claim was not reasonably available. Bejarano v. State, 122 Nev. 1066,

146 P.3d 265 (2006). Ineffective assistance of counsel also provides the “good cause”
necessary to excuse a procedural default. See, Loveland v. Hatcher, 231 F.3d 640, 645
(C.A. 9 (Nev.) 2000).

The legal basis for this ground was not previously available to Petitioner on direct
appeal since his trial counsel failed to properly object to it at trial. This failure to
request a curative or limiting jury instruction, was ineffective assistance of counsel.
(See pages Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) pp. 63-70). A claim of ineffective assistance of
counsel may also excuse a procedural default if counsel was so ineffective as to violate

the Sixth Amendment. Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 71 P.3d 503, 506, {Nev.

2003); Edwards v. Carpenter, 529 U.S. 446, 451, 120 S.Ct. 1587, 146 L.Ed.2d 518
(2000) (citing Carrier, 477 U.S. at 488-89, 106 S.Ct. 2639; See also Crump v. Warden,
113 Nev. 293, 304, 934 P.2d 247, 253 (1997).

As the U.S. Supreme Court explained, the State must prove every element of an
offense beyond a reasonable doubt, and the State cannot shift the burden of proof to
the defendant by presuming that ingredient upon proof of the other elements of the

offense. Apprendi v. New Jersey, 120 S.Ct. 2348, 530 U.S. 466 (U.S.N.J. 2000).

Further, Petitioner’s trial counsel did not properly object to the prosecutorial

misconduct in closing and he also did not request a curative or limiting instruction,
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from the Court, on the issue to be given to the jury. See, Musladin v. Lamarqgue, 555

F.3d 830 (9" Cir. Cal. 2009). Since the prosecutorial misconduct was not objected to
and a limiting instruction was not requested, this omission was the product of the
ineffective assistance of counsel, Therefore, it was also not thereon subject to review
on direct appeal. Since the misconduct and the limiting instruction were not
requested, and were the product of ineffective assistance of counsel, they were also not
subject to review on direct appeal since the misconduct was not placed upon the
record.

As to comments that shift the burden, we stated in United States v. Diaz-
Diaz, 433 F.3d 128, 135 (1% Cir. 2005) that ‘a prosecutor may cross the line
[into impermissibility] by arguing to the jury that the defendant is obligated
to present evidence of his innocence.’ The case of United States v. Skandier,
758 F.2d 43 (1* Cir. 1985) is illustrative. There, the prosecutor stated in
closing argument, ‘Now, at this time the defense counsel will address you;
. ... [then] I will have a chance to speak with you one more time and see if
he can explain the story that would be any different with regard to the
responsibility of the defendant in this case.” Id. At 45 {emphasis added).
We held this comment to have impermissibly shifted the burden of proof to
the defendant. [d. See also Diaz-Diaz, 433 F.3d at 135 (statement that
‘{defense] counsel can call this witness, just like the United States,’
impermissibly shifted the burden of proof).

U.S. v. Glover, 558 F.3d 71, 77 (C.A. 1 (Mass.) 2009).

This is the situation which presented itself when the district attorney commented
multiple times in summation that they would expected the defense to call more
witnesses than they did (AA Vol. 5, p. 211 at p. 12; p. 218 at p. 39, p. 240 at p. 128;
p. 241 at p. 129}. They also vouched for the testimony of Scott Sessions, the plastic
surgeon and repeatedly improperly impugned Petitioner’s character with the
improperly admitted misleading and false testimony of Sara Smith, Tricia Miller and
Detective Thowsen.

B. Petitioner Will Be Prejudiced If This Issue Is Not Heard.

The prejudice to Petitioner is clear from the record of the proceedings. As cited
to in the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction}, the State’s improper argument to the jury shifted the

burden of proof to the Petitioner to explain why he did not call certain witnesses. [t
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also allowed the jury to consider improper vouching and bolstering of State witnesses,
as well as repeatedly implying that Petitioner was a liar. Without any instruction from
the Court or curative or limiting instruction, this was the very last thing the jury heard,
before deliberations, and is per se ineffectiveness. As the Musladin Court observed:
After the prosecutor drew the jury’s attention to the damaging statement
and invited them to draw the precise inference that a limiting instruction
would have forbidden, Musladin’s trial counsel’s failure to request a limiting
instruction ‘fell below an objective standard of reasonableness.’ Strickland,
466 U.S. at 687, 104 S.Ct. 2052.
Id. at pp. 846-847.

The case of United States v. Skandier, 758 F.2d 43 (1% Cir. 1985) is illustrative.

There, the prosecutor stated in closing argument, “Now, at this time the defense
counsel will address you; . . . {then] I will have a chance to speak with you one more
time and see if he can explain the story that would be any different with regard to the
responsibility of the defendant in this case.” Id, at 45. The Court has held this
comment to have impermissibly shifted the burden of proof to the defendant. Id. See
also Diaz-Diaz, 433 F.3d at 135 (statement that “[defense] counsel can call this
witness, just like the United States,” impermissibly shifted the burden of proof). U.S.
v. Glover, 558 F.3d 71, 77 (C.A.1 (Mass.) 2009).

This is the situation which presented itself at Petitioner’s trial during closing
arguments. It is patently improper for a prosecutor either to comment on the
credibility of a witness or to express a personal belief that a particular witness is lying.
United States v. Young, 470 U.S. 1, 17-19, 105 S.Ct. 1038, 84 L.Ed.2d 1 (1985},
Berger, 295 U.S. at 86-88, 55 S.Ct. 629 (citing prosecutor’s statements suggesting that
he had personal knowledge that a witness was not being truthful as one example of

egregious prosecutorial misconduct); United States v. Carroll, 26 F.3d 1380, 1389 (6t

Cir. 1994) (“We cannot overstate the extent to which we disapprove of this sort of

improper vouching by prosecutors.”); State v. Smith, 14 OChio St. 3d 13, 470 N.E.2d

883, 885 (1984) (“It is improper for any attorney to express his personal belief or

opinion as to the credibility of a witness or as to the guilt of the accused.”) The
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prosecutor also committed prosecutorial misconduct by asking what he knew to be an
improper and highly prejudicial question about what Dr. Sessions told Petitioner (AA
Vol. 5, p. 213 at p. 17, 1l. 7-8) and about what Sessions would say when he testified
in the future.

As the Supreme Court explained in Young, there are two separate harms that
arise from such misconduct. First, “such comments can convey the impression that
evidence not presented to the jury, but known to the prosecutor, supports the charges
against the defendant and can thus jeopardize the defendant’s right to be tired solely
on the basis of the evidence presented to the jury.” Young, 470 U.S. at 18, 105 S.Ct.
1038. Second, “the prosecutor’s opinion carries with it the imprimatur of the
government and may induce the jury to trust the government’s judgment rather than
its own view of the evidence.” ]d. At 18-19, 105 S.Ct. 1038. Both concerns are
implicated in this case. The prosecutor’s numerous statements on witness
credibility-often unsupported by any rational justification other than an assumption
that Petitioner was guilty-cannot avoid suggesting to the jury that the prosecutor
knows something they do not.®

Therefore, since, in the instant case, Petitioner has shown both “good cause” and
“prejudice,” this matter should be heard on its merits.

II.

Petitioner’s Counsel Was Ineffective, Before, During and After Trial.

A. Standard of Review.

In evaluating counsel’s performance, the Supreme Court has long referred to the

American Bar Association (“ABA”) Standards for Criminal Justice as “guides to

®A failure to object to comments on witness credibility or derogatory statements
by the prosecutor is much less susceptible to the argument that it should be
considered reasonable trial strategy. Cf. Washington, 228 F.3d at 706 (“|A]ccepting
as a proper trial strategy a lawyer’s doubts over the effectiveness of objections and
curative instructions would preclude ineffectiveness claims in every case such as
this, no matter how outrageous the prosecutorial misconduct might be.”)

19
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determining what is reasonable.” Rompilla v. Beard, 545 U.S. 374, 387, 125 S.Ct.
2456, 162 L.Ed.2d 360 (2005); Wiggins, 539 U.S. at 524, 123 S.Ct. 2527; Strickland,

466 U.S. at 688, 104 S.Ct. 2052.

“Prevailing norms of practice as reflected in American Bar Association standards
and the like . . . are guides to determining what is reasonable.” 123 S.Ct. 2527, 2536,
539 U.S. 510, Wiggins v. Smith (U.S. 2003).” At the same time, however, courts are

“not required to condone unreasonable decisions parading under the umbrella of
strategy, or to fabricate tactical decisions on behalf of counsel when it appears on the
face of the record that counsel made no strategic decision at all. Moore v. Johnson, 194

F.3d 586, 604 (5™ Cir. 1999).

Although the Strickland presumption is demanding, it is not insurmountable.

Chatom v. White, 858 F.2d 1479, 1485 (11" Cir. 1988). It can be met when the

deficient actions center on a single sufficiently egregious and prejudicial incident. 1d.
And it may be assessed against the seriousness of the charges filed against the

defendant. Magill v. Dugger, 824 F.2d 879, 886 (11" Cir. 1987).

The Court accords counsel’s trial strategy a great measure of deference, however,

the strategy must be “objectively reasonable,” Miller v. Francis, 269 F.3d 609, 616 (6™

Cir. 2001), and the “mere incantation of ‘strategy’ does not insulate attorney behavior
from review.” Fisher v. Gibson, 282 F.3d 1283, 1296 (10" Cir. 2002), Davis v. Booker,
594 F.Supp.2d 802, 816 (E.D.Mich. 2009).

As the Court noted in Davis v. Booker, “[Clounsel’s error, although constituting

ineffective assistance, does not evidence a lack of commitment or conscientiousness.
[Clounsel’s failure does not reflect negatively on his abilities; rather, it reflects that a

conscientious attorney can make mistakes which prejudice his client.” Id. at p. 820.

"Respondent, instead, relies only upon Nevada cases despite the fact that
there are U.S. Supreme Court cases that apply. This reliance is both misplaced and
appears to be a tacit admission to the merits of Petitioner’s arguments to the
contrary.
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The mistakes in this case constituted ineffective assistance of counsel.

B. Daniel J. Albregts Disqualification Was Erroneous.

Petitioner respectfully incorporates the facts, law, evidence and argument raised
in Section I, B-1, regarding this issue as though fully set forth herein as well as pages
72-75 of the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).

As to the State’s Answer/Opposition, the attempts to justify the disqualification
of attorney Albregts are both factually and legally incorrect. Factually, Albregts never
“previously represented the Defendant in transactions involving real estate that the
Defendant and the decedent had owned in San Diego” and there is no cite to the record
of such, by the State, because simply this is an untrue statement and does not provide
a basis to deny Petitioner the relief which he seeks and is entitled to.

Albregts was never retained in connection with the real estate transaction and
his name is not on any of the real estate documents, he was never present or took part
in any of the negotiations or sale of the property, never drafted any documents, or met
with or spoke to any of the parties involved except in the context of preparing to oppose
the State’s attempt to revoke Petitioner’s pre-trial bail. As cited to above, and
incorporated by this reference, Albregts was neither an essential or necessary witness
and therefore he was erroneously disqualified. An evidentiary hearing is required in
order to firmly establish this.

Judge Gibbons, relying upon misstatements by the District Attorney’s Office at
the various hearings held on the matter, and the improper canvass conducted at the
hearings, disqualified Albregts (AA Vol 1, p. 14).

At the point of the disqualification, a Writ of Mandamus, or in the Alternative
Prohibition should have been filed by Petitioner’s counsel challenging the Court’s
ruling. It was not. Since this would have been the proper procedure in Nevada for
challenging a disqualification, there really was not a strategic reason for defense

counsel’s failure to (a) inform Petitioner that he could challenge the disqualification or
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(b) actually filing a challenge to the disqualification. Furthermore, there was not a
strategic reason for defense counsel not to have objected to the improper canvass or
to have asked that it be stricken from the record.

Legally, Respondent attempts to apply an “arbitrary and capricious” and/or
“abuse of discretion” standard to the disqualification.® This is incorrect. The U.S.

Supreme Court in U.S. v. Gonzales-Lopez has set the applicable standard as being

“erroneous” a much lesser standard than the one advocated by Respondent, and the
one that should be applied by this Court. Under the correct standard, Albregts’
disqualification was erroneous, which is defined as “mistaken.”

Here Petitioner has shown conclusively that the disqualification of Albregts was
an error of constitutional dimensions and it is unrefuted by Respondent that it was
accomplished by the bad faith actions of the District Attorney’s Office. Petitioner has

established that the disqualification was erroneous, therefore, pursuant to U.S. v.

Gonzalez-Lopez the violation is complete and he is therefore entitled to a new trial,
since the right to counsel of choice is an independent Sixth Amendment right and that
the denial of such right constitutes a structural error. 126 S.Ct. At 2562-65.

Furthermore, although not required to do so, Petitioner, herein, can demonstrate

prejudice. In Ryan v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court ex rel. County of Clark, 123 Nev. Ad.
Op. 42, 168 P.3d 703, 708-709 (2007), the Nevada Supreme Court has noted:

The Eighth Circuit noted that “[iJawyers are not fungible, and often the
most important decision a defendant makes in shaping his defense is his
selection of any attorney.’“ The Eighth Circuit concluded that attorneys are
not interchangeable because qw]ithin the range of effective advocacy,
attorneys will differ as to their trial strategy, oratory style, and the
importance they place on certain legal issues. They may also differ with
respect to expertise in certain areas of law, and experience or familiarity
with opposing counsel and the judge. These differences will impact a trial
in every way the presence or absence of counsel impacts a trial.’

®As stated above (in Section I, B-1), Petitioner can show abuse of discretion
since the Court did not properly consider the fact that Albregts was not a necessary
and indispensable witness and that the attorney-client privilege would have
prevented him from testifying.

22
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The absence of attorney Albregts similarly has prejudiced Petitioner. Not being
afforded a hearing on this fundamental violation of Petitioner’s Sixth Amendment
Rights was and is a fundamental miscarriage of justice, and a structural error.
Furthermore, a hearing is not held by this court, it would allow for the erroneous
disqualification of Petitioner’s counsel without proper review.

C. Defendant was Improperly Canvassed on the Issue of Self-Defense.

Petitioner respectfully incorporates the facts, law, evidence and argument raised
in Section I, B-2, regarding this issue as though fully set forth herein, as well as pages
75-80 of the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction). Defense counsel’s acquiescence to this improper
canvassing constituted ineffective assistance of counsel and a violation of Petitioner’s
Sixth Amendment rights as set forth in the Constitution of the United States.

Respondent in their Opposition/Answer fail to refute any of the factual or legal
arguments set forth in the Petition, including the bad faith actions of the District
Attorney’s Office and errors by the District Court in erroneously violating Petitioner’s
U.S. Constitutional Rights. By only referring to the irrelevant opinions in Ennis, Hill,
and St. Pierre and by not addressing the U.S. Supreme Court precedents and U.S.
Constitutional viclations, as well as the facts, Respondent has conceded these issues
pursuant to EDCR 2.20 and that Petitioner is entitled to a new trial.

The whole purpose of a plea canvass is to ensure that a defendant is aware of the
constitutional rights that he is foregoing by choosing to plead guilty, i.e. that the waiver
of rights is knowing. See Boykin, 395 U.S. at 243-44, 89 S.Ct. 1709, See also Brady
v. United States, 397 U.S. 742, 748, 90 S.Ct. 1463, 25 L.Ed.2d 747 (1970) (describing

guilty pleas as “[w]aivers of constitutional rights [that] not only must be voluntary but
must be knowing, intelligent acts”). Here, it is undisputed, that neither the District
Attorney’s Office or the District Judge had the authority to request or conduct the pre-

trial canvass of Petitioner on his trial strategy about utilizing self-defense. It is also
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undisputed that it was ineffective assistance of counsel for defense counsel to advise
Petitioner that he had to participate in the canvass or the trial would not be allowed
to go forward/and or he would not be able to proceed forward with the defense of self-
defense because this was simply not the state of the law.

The prejudice in this instance is apparent from a review of the record and the
proceeding as a whole. Petitioner was coerced and then ultimately forced to concede
that he was limiting himself to the implausible defense of self-defense, when the law
simply did not require him to do so. By limiting Petitioner to the one defense, and by
being “required” to admit to being the shooter, he was precluded from requiring the
State to prove each and every element of the crimes charged® or from assuming any
other defenses that became available to him due as the evidence was presented during
the trial.

“[TThe admission by counsel of his client’s guilt to the jury . . . represents a
paradigmatic example of the sort of breakdown in the adversarial process that triggers

a presumption of prejudice” (Emphasis added). United States v. Williamson, 53 F.3d

1500, 1511 (10™ Cir. 1995). “Whether such an admission actually occurred is
necessarily fact-intensive.” Id. In making this determination, “[t]Jhe focus must be on
whether, in light of the entire record, the attorney remained a legal advocate of the
defendant who acted with undivided allegiance and [in] faithful, devoted service.” Id.
This issue is precisely why an evidentiary hearing is required in this case.
Petitioner’s counsel also improperly advised him that he also had to waive his
Fifth Amendment right and testify during the canvass and at trial (AA Vol. 1, p. 38;
also see Exhibit 9, Reporter’s Transcript of March 12, 2004, at pp. 62). As this was an

incorrect statement of the law which prejudiced Petitioner, this constitutes ineffective

°The Supreme Court has held that “the due process clause [of the Fourteenth
Amendment] protects the accused against conviction except upon proof beyond a
reasonable doubt of every fact necessary to constitute the crime with which he is
charged.” In re Winship, 397 U.S. 358, 364, 90 S.Ct. 1068, 25 L.Ed. 2d 368 (1970},
Middleton v. McNeil, 541 U.S. 433, 437, 124 S.Ct. 1830, 158 L.Ed. 2d 701 (2004).
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assistance of counsel, as Petitioner’s counsel was in possession of the documents and
opinions of his own experts that self-defense was not a viable defense in their opinion.
The end result was that when defense counsel allowed Petitioner to be canvassed on
self-defense by the Court and was required to admit (pre-trial) that he fired the fatal
shots, counsel essentially had Petitioner plead guilty to first degree murder with the
use of a firearm (See Exhibit 9, p. 62). This was not explained td him before, during or
after the de facto plea was entered, and under no circumstances could it be considered
knowingly, intelligently and voluntarily made. Nor could this be considered a strategic
decision. |

Therefore, Petitioner was denied the effective assistance of counsel at the most
critical stage of the proceeding, that being not challenging the Court’s ruling that he
had to consent to being canvassed which essentially assured his conviction and made
the subsequent trial a farce, especially when the State emphasized the impact of the
improper canvass in their Closing (AA, Vol. 5, p. 209 at p. 4). This clearly constituted
ineffective assistance of counsel in violation of Petitioner’s rights as guaranteed under
the Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments of the Constitution of the United States
and clearly requires an evidentiary hearing so that the Court can determine why
defense counsel pursued this tact.

D. Defense Counsel was Ineffective in Representing the Events of
December 1, 2000. .

Petitioner incorporates pages 78-80 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. In response to Petitioner’s well documented assertions,
Respondent claims “there is no evidence to support what testimony or potential
hearsay these witnesses would offer. These are bare allegations without any reference
to the record for which [Petitioner| is not entitled to relief.”, Further, without an
opportunity to present this evidence in an evidentiary hearing, how could Petitioner

meet his burden?

25

Appellant's  Appendix Volume 12, Page 25




W R W N

~ D

10
11
12
i3
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Ineffective assistance of counsel claims cannot be raised in a direct appeal, let
alone at a trial or any other recorded pre-trial proceeding. Therefore, how could
anyone be able to bring forth a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel pre-trial and
at trial other than as Petitioner has done? Further, Petitioner has cited to each and
every instance in the record which supports this claim?

Petitioner has provided the Court and Respondent over 300 pages in the points
and authorities to support his Petition, and therein cites to all available evidence,
including the relevant trial testimony and references to any and all witnesses,
documents and other evidence known and available to Petitioner, so to say these are
“bare allegations” is incorrect.

It would appear that Respondent is conceding the need for discovery and/or an
evidentiary hearing on this matter, as this would be the only method available for
Petitioner and others to further develop pre-trial ineffective assistance of counsel
claims. Therefore, Petitioner requests that he be allowed to conduct discovery under
NRS 34.780 and then be given an evidentiary hearing in order to present these issues
fully and properly to this Court.

E. Defense Counsel was Ineffective in Representing the Events of
December S5, 2000.

Petitioner incorporates pages 80-84 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Again, Respondent does not refute the merits of
Petitioner’s claims, but instead attempts to say they are excluded pursuant to the
Nevada Supreme Court’s decision in Rhyne. This misses the point. Counsel was
ineffective by not properly preparing and presenting the events of December 5, 2000,
and as the relevant U.S. Supreme Court and federal precedents instruct, this is the
definition of ineffective assistance of counsel. Respondent also appears to be making
a veiled reference to the fact that Petitioner is also an attorney in the comment

“stepping outside the scope of his right.”
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If Petitioner was indeed consulted with regard to tactics and strategy and was
told one thing when another was done, would not the misrepresentations and false
statements, made by defense counsel, provide the basis for ineffective assistance of
counsel? Wouldn’t an evidentiary hearing be required to allow Petitioner to establish
these claims? Was the client in Rhyne an attorney? Does that not make the case
completely distinguishable? Since there are no cases on point, the Court should hear
and decide this novel claim on its merits.

The events of December 5, 2000, started the night of December 4, 2000, when
Petitioner was called by the decedent and told to pick Nicholas up at daycare because
he was reportedly ill. Petitioner left work, picked up Quito from Safekey, went and
picked up Nicholas from daycare, and then proceeded to the Urgent Care Center where
Nicholas was seen by a doctor, and prescribed medication. Petitioner then took
Nicholas and (Francisco) Quito to the pharmacy where he picked up the prescriptions,
and on the way home stopped and got Quito something to eat at Burger King.

Each of these events was supported by documents, evidence and testimony
which were available to defense counsel who did not adequately prepare or present
them at the trial. The doctor and nurse on duty that night, whose names were given
to defense counsel, were prepared to testify to support Petitioner’s testimony and
credibility on this issue but they were never called as witnesses.

An evidentiary hearing before this Court is necessary to allow Petitioner the
opportunity to prove these allegations by presenting these witnesses. There were the
receipts from both the pharmacy and Burger King which were time and date stamped.
Petitioner also made numerous calls to decedent which were reflected on cellular phone
bills. This time line was critical in establishing what led up to the December 5, 2000
domestic violence incident for which decedent, not Petitioner, was arrested.

By presenting none of this evidence, the State was allowed to argue at Closing
the false testimony of the day care records custodian who said Petitioner “never picked

up Nicholas” which thereby fatally discredited the Petitioner’s testimony and his entire
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defense (AA Vol. 5, p. 236 at p. 111). At the time Nicholas was picked up, decedent
was in a bar, with co-workers, drinking and was across town. The insinuation was
that she, not Petitioner, had picked up Nicholas. This was easily disprovable. Defense
counsel’s failure to prepare the evidence to support the defense time line and events
prejudiced Petitioner, who was cross-examined regarding that he “never picked up
Nicholas.”

F. Defense Counsel was Ineffective in Relation to the Different Evidentiary
Issues Raised by Petitioner.

Petitioner incorporates pages 84-92 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein.

1. Standard of Review

“lIln assessing the reasonableness of an attorney’s investigation . . . a court must
consider not only the quantum of evidence already known to counsel, but also whether
the known evidence would lead a reasonable attorney to investigate further.” Wigginsg
v. Smith, 539 U.S. 510, 527, 123 S.Ct. 2527, 156 L.Ed.2d 471 (2003). In the instant
case, defense counsel had Dr. Eisel’s report for three years before the trial yet put him
on the stand resulting in him expressing an expert opinion which totally refuted
Petitioner’s theory of defense. The court generally presumes that lawyers conduct
adequate investigations, unless the record reflects otherwise. See, e.g., Foreman v.

United States, 247 Fed. Appx. 246, 248 (2d Cir. 2007). Counsel need not pursue

investigations that will undermine the defendant’s primary defense tactic. Denby v.

Comm’r of Correction, 234 Fed. Appx., 1,2 (2d Cir. 2007).

Despite such presumptions and deference, however, “if certain [acts or]
omisstons cannot be explained convincingly as resulting from a sound trial strategy,
but instead arose from oversight, carelessness, ineptitude, or laziness, {a court may]
find the quality of representation sufficiently deficient to grant the writ.” Eze, 321 F.3d

at 112. How is it acceptable “strategy” to put on your own expert who then expresses
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an opinion which destroys your whole defense?

2. The Evidence Regarding December 20, 2000.

Petitioner incorporates pages 84-92 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Respondent incorrectly states “evidence regarding
December 20, 2000" is not exculpatory. Petitioner has stated both emphatically and
with references to the record that all of the items defense counsel did not investigate
were critical in the presentation of the defense. The key chain, cellular phone, palm
pilot, and purse all had critical information (Vol. 3, pp. 134-136 at pp. 69-76; p. 194
at p. 23; p. 213 at pp. 99-100; also see Memorandum of Points and Authorities in
Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction), pp. 87-89] (with.
further references to the record) and shell casings (see below) (the only items
Respondent choose to address) as well as the decedent’s vehicle, its contents, her
apartment, its contents (including her computer, answering machine and other items)
were not obtainable from other sources and were purposely destroyed (either physically
or their evidentiary value) by the police and State by either not preserving obvious
items of evidentiary value or by turning them over to third parties. The failure of trial
counsel to raise the issue is not one of the “legal tactics” as in Rhyne, but ineffective
under Strickland.

Respondent’s argument regarding the limited presentation to the jury of the keys
further supports Petitioner’s contention as it is stated “the argument was ineffective”
as the matter was not “material to the case.” It was not material because defense
counsel dropped the ball. It was material to the defense as it would provide the jury
with the necessary evidence to determine that serious mistakes were made in the way
the police processed the scene on December 20, 2000, which materially prejudiced
Petitioner’s ability to defend himself at trial.

Petitioner’s counsel’s failure to understand Nevada law prejudiced him on this

issue. In Nevada, the defense must first show that the evidence was material, 1.e., that
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® ®
there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have been
different if the evidence had been available. Second, if the evidence was material, the
court must determine whether the failure to gather it resulted from negligence, gross
negligence, or bad faith.

In the case of mere negligence, no sanctions are imposed, but the defendant can
examine the State’s witnesses about the investigative deficiencies; in the case of gross
negligence, the defense is entitled to a presumption that the evidence would have been
unfavorable to the State; and in the case of bad faith, depending on the case as a
whole, dismissal of the charges may be warranted. See Gordon v. State, 121 Nev. 504,
117 P.3d 214, 218 (Nev. 2005).

Here, defense counsel did not conduct any investigation into any of the lost,
missing, and destroyed items which would have set up the proper challenge to the
actions of the police and district attorney’s office in failing to properly process the
alleged crime scene, as well as failing to preserve the other evidence gathered in the
course of their investigation. In preparing for trial, “|cJounsel has a duty to make

reasonable investigations or to make a reasonable decision that makes particular

investigations unnecessary.” Lindstadt v. Keane, 239 F.3d 191, 200 (2d Cir. 2001)

(quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691, 104 S.Ct. 2052).

The failure to conduct an adequate investigation prejudiced Petitioner. Since the
police and the prosecutors saw fit to obtain search warrants for the items that they
then simply turned over to the family members, without properly processing or
allowing the defense access to them, Petitioner was prejudiced as these items had clear
evidentiary value, as Petitioner has explained in his Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction}, and this
oversight entitles him to a new trial or an evidentiary hearing on the issues raised.

3. The Exercise Bike.

Petitioner incorporates pages 92-98 of the Memorandum of Points and

Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
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though fully set forth herein. Respondent argues that “the exercise bike provides only
a ‘mere hoped for conclusion’ based, in part on the assertion that “photos were taken
and admitted into evidence” and experts were questioned for two days. This is
misleading. Testimony was received and cited to in the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction)
demonstrating that the photos were inadequate to provide a proper analysis. See
pages 92-96, incorporated herein by this reference. This was prejudicial because it
enabled the State to argue throughout the trial regarding how the incident occurred.
That was prejudicial to Petitioner as the State’s theory of how the incident occurred
would have been refuted by evidence that would have been obtained if the bike had
been preserved as found at the scene and the bike produced for examination by the
defense expert before and at trial. The blood smear on the bike was a key piece of
evidence which the defense expert needed to actually see instead of merely being
provided with a picture of it. See Opening Statement, AA Vol. 8, p. 25 at p. 146; p. 62
at p. 183; Closing Statements, AA Vol. 5, p. 216 at pp. 29-30, 62; Closing Rebuttal AA
Vol. 5, p. 240 at p. 125; p. 241 at p. 132.

There was no reason for the State not to collect the exercise bike and preserve

it and its evidentiary value. All of the same tests applicable in Gordon v. State should

be applied here. Similarly, there is no excuse for Petitioner’s counsel to not have
requested access to the exercise bike until after a three and one-half year period had
elapsed or to have made the argument that the evidence collected by the State be
subject to the mandates of Gordon before introduction.

The U.S. Supreme Court has decided cases which refute and supercede the
State’s contention that Youngblood does not apply whenever the contested evidence
provides a defendant’s “only hope for exoneration” and is “‘essential to and
determinative of the outcome of the case.” The Court in [llinois v. Fisher stated that
[I}n Youngblood, the Arizona Court of Appeals said that the destroyed evidence “could
[have| eliminate|d] the defendant [540 U.S. 549] as the perpetrator” and therefore the
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Respondent’s application of Youngblood is both unreasonable and an incorrect
statement of controlling United States Supreme Court precedent. lllinois v. Fisher, 540
U.S. 544, 124 S.Ct. 1200, 1202-1203.

4. Missing Shell Casings.

Respondent asserts that the claim regarding the shell casings is speculative, not
exculpatory, and since five (5) of the casings were recovered, the burden was not met
under Warner. Respondent misses the point. See pages 98-100 of the Memorandum
of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-
Conviction), incorporated herein by this reference. The destruction of evidence claim
is not only as to the later discovery of the two shell casings themselves, but as to the
location of the shell casings which was critical to the defense’s presentation at trial to
support the defense’s theory as to how the shooting occurred. The bad faith
requirement was met by the overall factual showing of the police failure to properly
process the crime scene in such a way that prejudiced the defense and which was
advantageous for the State. This was key evidence on the issue of premeditation.

As with the exercise bike, the failure by the State to gather all of the shell casings
materially prejudiced the Petitioner and resulted in an unfair advantage for the State.
The State was allowed to benefit from its own failure to locate, document, and process
the additional casings and argue to the jury regarding the events of December 20,
2000, in a way that they would not have otherwise been able to, had the casings been
located. The State cannot be allowed to benefit in such a manner from its failure to

preserve evidence. See Sparks v. State, 104 Nev. 316, 759 P.2d 180, 182 (1988).

In Sparks, the Nevada Supreme Court noted:

There were no witnesses to the homicide. Appellant’s claim of self-defense
rested, almost exclusively, on her own testimony. Blood, hair, or
fingerprints if found on the weapon would have been critical, corroborative
evidence supporting her testimony. Furthermore, we must evaluate the
potential effect of the lost evidence in light of the State’s opening and closing
comments in which the State argued that the lack of fingerprints and blood
on the gun supported the State’s theory, that the gun was not used and
appellant was not acting in self-defense. Id.
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This case is not factually distinguishable from Petitioner’s and is applicable here.
The State in Opening and Closing statements asserted the position that the shell
casings conclusively proved their theory of how the alleged incident of December 20,
2000, took place.

Everybody agrees that the casings were in two different places and that’s

indicative of a pause in the shooting which also shows premeditation. The

casings were at one point so the shooting started in one area and there was

a pause and there’s casings located in another area. (AA Vol. 5, p. 241 at

p- 129)
As in Sparks, the State cannot be allowed to benefit in such a manner from its failure
to gather all of the shell casings, including those that would have cast doubt about
their theory of the events and supported Petitioner’s claim of self-defense or which
would have given rise to another theory of defense or at least mitigating factors.

5. Cremation Order.

Respondent claims that Petitioner is “basing his claim entirely on bare
allegations.” Since Petitioner has provided facts, that if proven, would provide a prima
facie case of bad faith by the State and destruction of evidence, the Court should allow
Petitioner to conduct the necessary discovery and should hold an evidentiary hearing
on this issue.

Petitioner incorporates pages 101-103 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. In responding to Petitioner’s allegations on this issue,
Respondent’s reliance for support on Ennis is misplaced. This was not merely
something that wasn’t objected to at trial, but something not raised by ineffective
counsel.

Destruction of evidence by the government rises to a constitutional violation
when three requirements are met: (1) the government must have acted in bad faith in
destroying the evidence, see Youngblood, 488 U.S. at 56-58, 109 S.Ct. 333; (2) the
“evidence must . . . possess an exculpatory value that was apparent before [it] was

destroyed, “California v. Trombetta, 467 U.S. 479, 489, 104, S.Ct. 2528, 81 L.Ed.2d
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413 {1934); and (3) the defendant must be “unable to obtain comparable evidence by
other reasonably available means.” Id.

Petitioner can meet all three of these enumerated tests: (1) it was bad faith on
the part of the State to obtain Petitioner’s signature in violation of his Sixth
Amendment right to counsel and by threatening him to get a signed “authorization”
which led to the destruction of the evidence; (2) the alleged victim’s body in any murder
case would possess exculpatory evidence value before it was destroyed, as was
evidenced by the State’s forensic pathologists own testimony at trial that the gun shot
wounds and other evidence could support self-defense [See AA Vol. 4, p. 221 at p. 87;
p.- 213 at pp. 93, 95; p. 215 at p. 103; also see pp. 160-162 of Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction)] an
independent autopsy, such as the one granted to the family in the Ted Binion case,
and others, is not something unfamiliar to the State; and (3) the State collected the
evidence to support their case and version of events and then allowed the decedent’s
body to be cremated, leaving Petitioner without any other reasonable means to
challenge at trial, or at the very least be left to argue the interpretation of the results
and not have primary access to conduct their own examination and testing.

Petitioner could only locate one case in which a body was cremated, and the case
involved a medical malpractice action that was pending at the time that the plaintiff
died. An autopsy was performed by a medical expert hired by plaintiff’s counsel. The
autopsy was limited to the organs concerned in the malpractice action. The plaintiff’s
body was then cremated and no notice was given to defendants of either the plaintiff’s
death, the autopsy or the cremation.

The trial court did not dismiss the action, but prohibited any use of evidence
from the autopsy except samples and slides. The trial court noted its specific finding
of gross and intentional misconduct on the part of plaintiff’s expert witness and the
plaintiff’s family. The court found that the defendant was entitled to notice, but that

notice was not given. “Observing that the trial court properly could have dismissed the
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action, we affirmed the trial court’s decision to exclude evidence derived from the

undisclosed autopsy.” Barnett v. Simmons, 197 P.3d 19-197 P.3d 20 (Okla. 2008).

A similar request for dismissal or prohibition on the use of the evidence should
have been pursued in the instant case, by Petitioner’s counsel, since the impact of the
failure to have access to the actual body, as opposed to simply being able to review the
results of the autopsy conducted by the State was used by the State at trial and in
Closing to prove their case against Petitioner. Further, the police actively facilitated
the destruction of the decedent’s body by meeting with the Petitioner in jail, outside of
the presence of his attorney and insisting that Petitioner sign the cremation order. In
essence, the police insisted that Petitioner authorize the destruction of evidence.

G. Defense Counsel Was Ineffective In Challenging the Search Warrant.

Petitioner incorporates pages 103-105 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein.

The Supreme Court has clearly established that “a single, serious error may
support a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel” - including counsel’s failure to file
a motion to suppress. Kimmelman v. Morrison, 477 U.S. 365, 383, 106 S.Ct. It was
ineffective for defense counsel not to file a Motion to Suppress and the failure to do so
was not strategy but “objectively unreasonable” since the exclusion of evidence
collected at 8720 Wintry Garden would have changed the result of the trial.

In the instant case, the warrant issue was important, since if the warrant was
successfully challenged, it would have resulted in a hearing in which Petitioner could
have prevented the introduction of all the evidence gathered pursuant to the warrant,
which would have changed the result of the trial.

In addition to the requirements set forth in the Fourth Amendment of the
Constitution of the United States, Nevada statutes require that a warrant must be
signed by a duly authorized judge. The warrant to search Petitioner’s home was a

telephonic warrant and defense counsel failed to obtain a copy of a signed warrant, if
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one existed, or a copy of the telephonic application for it.

In United State v. Jackson, 617 F.Supp.2d, 316 (M.D. Pa 2008}, the Court gives
an overview of the constitutional law regarding unsigned warrants. Of note, are the
cases which involve unsigned telephonic search warrants.

As the U.S. v. Jackson Court observed:

The decisions of the Fifth and Ninth Circuits rely heavily upon the fact that
each affiant applied for the warrant in person and observed the issuing
authorities actions in completing the warrant. The hallmark of these cases
is the fact the affiant “participated in every step of the process . . . and
received the warrant back from the judge.” [Citation omitted]

Jackson at page 323.

In the instant case, the warrant obtained for Petitioner’s residence at Wintry
Garden was not done in person but over the phone. The signed warrant, if there really
was one, was never obtained or placed in the file, nor was the tape recording of the
alleged discussion between the officer and the magistrate contained in the file or
otherwise made available to defense counsel who ultimately did not press this issue
either. Therefore, there is no indicia of reliability that a valid warrant was even
requested, let alone validly issued. This combined with the failure to conduct each of
the steps in person, calls into question the validity of the warrant.'® (AA Vol. 1, pp.
199-201).

These issues should have been raised in a pretrial suppression motion. The
failure to do so was objectively unreasonable as the issues were ripe and had merit,
and if successful would have greatly crippled the prosecution’s case, or resulted in a
dismissal of charges, as without evidence from the Wintry Garden residence, the State

had no case to prosecute. This failure constituted the ineffective assistance of counsel

and was prejudicial, entitling Petitioner to a new trial.

'“Petitioner wishes to bring to the Court’s attention the police claim to have
seized a “computer disc” from 8720 Wintry Garden the night of December, 20,
2000. This “disc” was never mailed to the defense and may, in fact, be the “disc”
State witness Sara Smith “discovered” almost three years later and which became
the subject of a multitude pretrial hearings on its admissibility.

36

Appellant's  Appendix Volume 12, Page 36




H. The Photographs Were Improperly Turned Over in Violation of
Attorney-Client and Attorney Work-Product Privilege.

Petitioner incorporates pages 103-109 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Nevada has not addressed this issue directly or indirectly
and the New York state case of Pegple v. Kendall, 678 N.Y.S.2d 182 (N.Y. App. Div.
1998), cited by Respondent, is not relevant. In Kendall, the Court addressed the issue
of the objection to the introduction of crime scene photos taken by the State on the
grounds they were taken over six (6) hours after the alleged crime had occurred. The
Court ruled that they were taken too long after the alleged incident and after the scene
had been contaminated. The Court ruled the photos were admissible and the jury
could decide what weight to give them. Petitioner asserts that this case is not on point
on the issue Petitioner is asserting and is inapplicable to the actual issue presented.

Petitioner’s issue is whether by providing of photographs taken by defense
attorneys on the night of the homicide together with defense attorney notes, to the
District Attorney’s Office without the knowledge or consent of the defendant or his
counsel was wrong and prejudicial. The issue is one involving work-product and
attorney-client privilege (AA Vol. 2, pp. 51-52).

Attorney Mutch, acting on behalf of Petitioner, took photographs at the scene
and conducted interviews (spoke with Petitioner’s parents, neighbors and the
investigators from the police department) (AA Vol. 2, p. 45). She made notes of these
interviews. Further, there is an issue as to whether or not the District Attorney’s Office
acted in bad faith in accepting the materials, and any investigative leads which may
have come about from the review of the materials, which clearly should not have been
disclosed nor used for any purpose by the State. Wong Sun, et al v. United States, 371
U.S. 471, 83 S.Ct. 407, 9 L.Ed. 2d. 441 (1963).

Respondent does not contend that the items were not protected but instead

confuses the facts as to who was involved. Eva Cisneros, Petitioner’s prior employer
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has nothing to do with this issue and never has. Respondent also confuses the law as
they leap frog over the constitutional and ethical violations and instead claim Petitioner
must show “how the information was misused.” This can only be done by conducting
an investigation through the discovery process and thereafter have an evidentiary
hearing which will settle the work product violation and the ineffective assistance of
counsel allegation. Since the turning over of the materials and receipt of them was
improper, unconstitutional and unethical, Petitioner has made a prima facie showing
which entitles him to the relief that he now seeks which initially is an evidentiary
hearing.

Further, the state never turned over the materials they improperly received
from defendant’s crime scene attorneys to the defense or disclosed what was done
with the materials after they were received. Therefore, the State is asking Petitioner
to prove something when they have sole possession of all of the necessary facts,
documents and evidence necessary for Petitioner to prove the claim. Therefore,
Petitioner renews his request to be allowed to conduct discovery on this issue pursuant
to NRS 34.780.

Other courts have found affirmative acts of intrusion, on the government’s part
resulting in disclosure of confidential communications, have negated any right to
cffective counsel that the defendant may ostensibly have had and prejudice to the
defendant is presumed. United States v. Levy, 577 F.2d 200, 208 (3d. Cir. 1978);
Coplon v. United States, 191 F.2d 749 (D.C. Cir. 1951), cert. Denied, 342 U.S. 926, 72

S.Ct. 363, 96 L.Ed. 690 (1952). This includes decisions by the Nevada Supreme Court.

11177
[ 1777
[ 1777
117
11777
/11177
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See, Manley v. State, 115 Nev. 114, 979 P.2d 703, 707-708 (Nev. 1999)."

The Supreme Court’s decision in Weatherford v. Bursey, 429 U.S. 545, 97 S.Ct.

837, 51 L.Ed.2d 30 (1977), provides a basic Sixth Amendment analysis with respect

to the breach of the attorney-client privilege. In Weatherford, an undercover

government agent was arrested along with the defendant. At the defendant’s request,
the agent attended two pretrial conferences between defendant and his attorney. The
agent obliged the defendant in order to preserve his cover, but he also testified as a
witness for the prosecution at the defendant’s trial.

Even though a state law enforcement agent had intruded upon the attorney-
client relationship, the Court held that there was no constitutional violation as long as
the agent did not reveal strategy or information regarding the pending charges. Id. at
558.

The Weatherford decision and subsequent interpretation thereof, provide a

general framework for analysis of Sixth Amendment claims involving an intrusion into
the relationship between client and attorney. It is clear that this Sixth Amendment
analysis involves consideration of the factual circumstances and the totality of the
circumstances which have resulted in the denial of defendant’s right to a fair trial. It
1s a consideration of both the extent to which the State has intruded in an affirmative
manner upon the defendant’s privileged relationship with his or her attorney, as well
as the extent to which the defendant has been prejudiced by disclosure of privileged
information.

For example, in a case where a privileged communication was inadvertently

1“The prosecutor’s cross-examination damaged appellant’s credibility by
implying that appellant had not been entirely truthful even with his own attorneys,
and had either omitted information detrimental to him or simply lied to them
regarding what happened the night of the shooting. The jury’s assessment of
appellant’s credibility was crucial in this case, where appellant claimed the shooting
was accidental and only appellant and Logan were present when she was shot.
Therefore, we conclude that the prosecutor’s inquiry violated appellant’s Sixth
Amendment right to counsel.” Id. At p. 708
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discovered by the police and used at trial, the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals held that

the defendant’s Sixth Amendment rights had been violated. Bishop v. Rose, 701 F.2d
1150, 1157 (6™ Cir. 1983). The document was eventually returned, but not before the
police made copies and supplied them to the investigating officers. At the defendant’s
trial, the prosecutors used a copy of the document to impeach the defendant, who
chose to testify on his own behalf. The Sixth Circuit found a Sixth Amendment
violation under these circumstances since the privileged information was used for the
benefit of the prosecution and to the defendant’s substantial detriment, thus
establishing the necessary level of prejudice despite the lack of a planned governmental
intrusion. Id. At 1156.

In People v. Knippenberg, 66 I11.2d 276, 6 Ill. Dec. 46, 362 N.E.2d 681 (1977),
the defendant, in an appeal from his murder conviction, argued that he was denied a
fair trial by the prosecutor’s improper use of a privileged statement which defendant
had made to a defense investigator to impeach defendant at trial. The defendant had
made statements to an investigator for the Illinois Defender Project who had been
engaged by the defendant’s attorney to aid in the defense. The investigator prepared
a summary of the interview with defendant, which somehow found its way into the
hands of the government’s attorneys. It was not clear from the record how this
summary was obtained by the prosecutors, but the method of disclosure was not
important to the court’s decision that “|w]hat occurred here was violative of the notion
of a fair trial and completely offensive to the concept of the effective assistance of
counsel. The prejudice to the defendant was grave and inexcusable.” ld. at 285, 6
Ill.Dec. At 50, 362 NE.2d at 685.

The similarity to the present case extends to the direct and indirect use of
privileged information as well. In Bishop, the government was prevented from
introducing the document at trial, but used it instead to impeach the defendant. Here,
the improperly obtained photos and notes were in fact introduced by the State at trial,

and were also used to obtain other evidence which was used in its case. See pp. 284-
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286 of Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas

Corpus (Post-Conviction). In Knippenberg, despite the lack of proof of an intentional

intrusion, prejudice was found. Here, it is undisputed that it was an intentional
intrusion which had occurred. Petitioner’s Attorney Harvey Gruber asked other
attorneys to meet and to assist him at the Wintry Garden residence on December 20,
2000. Petitioner is informed and believes, they were instructed to take photographs
and notes of who was present and what was said. What else was done is still unknown
and this information can only be obtained by an evidentiary hearing.

These photographs and notes which were originally taken on Petitioner’s behalf
were not turned over to defense counsel. Instead, Petitioner’s original attorneys hired
their own counsel, John Moran, the son of the former Sheriff of Clark County, who
advised them to turn all the information, documents, photographs and notes over to
the police. The police did not refuse this offer and instead gladly accepted it and did
not at any time inform the Petitioner or his counsel about what had occurred (AA Vol.
2, p. 51).

The first time that any of this came to light was immediately before the trial
which began in March of 2004, when Attorney Janeen Mutch was called to the stand.
Despite the fact that her testimony was ruled inadmissible under attorney-client
privilege, the notes, documents and photographs were not ruled inadmissible. No
effort was made to learn what the State did with this information, and how this
benefitted them in the investigation and preparation for trial. This lack of effort by
defense counsel constituted ineffective assistance of counsel.

This prejudiced the Petitioner as the State used, at least in part, the information
to both further investigate the case, as well as to impeach Petitioner on the stand, as
had occurred as in the Bishop decision. Here, the State artfully used an
unauthenticated photo (taken ostensibly by Mutch} to imply to the jury that they could
see in a particular photograph the indent on the couch where the alleged victim was

supposedly sitting when the shooting incident took place (AA Vol. 5, p. 214 at 21). The

41

Appellant's  Appendix Volume 12, Page 41




-

ooen a1 Sy W

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

use of any information in violation of Petitioner’s privilege by the State, was, as in

Bishop and Knippenberg, equally inexcusable. This may not be the only example, that

1s why discovery must be allowed on this issue.

Furthermore, Petitioner believes the information, documents, photographs and
other evidence was withheld from disclosure by the State in violation of Petitioner’s
state and federal rights under Nevada’s reciprocal discovery statute, and Brady and its
progeny. Only through the discovery process and an evidentiary hearing, can this
issue be properly addressed.

I. Counsel was Ineffective Regarding Failure to Call Witnesses.

Petitioner incorporates pages 109-116 of the Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. Respondent makes the bare allegation that “defense
counsel chose to pursue the case the best way he deemed fit.” Where does this
information come from? Where is their cite to the record? These statements give rise
to a factual dispute which requires the taking of evidence on matters outside of the
record. And even, arguendo, had Petitioner’s trial counsel made this statement, would
it not fall into the very same “unsupported” “self-serving” “speculative” “bare allegation”
category Respondent has argued in opposition throughout its own Answer/Opposition?

Petitioner has cited extensively to the available record and evidence on this issue
and thus has made a prima facie case which entitles him to the relief he is seeking, a
new trial. If defense counsel made this statement to the prosecutors, then he should
explain what was meant by this. Otherwise, this is just the unsupported opinion of
Respondent.

In another case which involved a charge of assault with intent to commit murder,
the defendant’s girlfriend’s former boyfriend, a defense attorney’s failure to conduct
adequate investigation before trial, resulted in the decision not to call the girlfriend
because of credibility and impeachment concerns after the attorney already had

promised during opening statement that he would call her, This constituted ineffective
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assistance. The inadequate investigation precluded the attorney from an informed and
reasoned decision to either call the girlfriend or not promise to call her, as the girlfriend
was the only witness who could corroborate defendant’s self-defense claim. Enclosh

v. Romanowski, 589 F.Supp.2d 893 (E.D.Mich.2008).

The same situation permeated Petitioner’s counsel’s failure to call witnesses
during his trial that he had promised to call in his Opening Statement. As outlined in
the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction), trial defense counsel’s failures were due to a combination of
failing to subpoena crucial witnesses (i.e., Emeline Eisenman, who would have been
able to testify about the decedent’s propensity for violence) (AA Vol. 8, p. 42 at p. 163},
and investigate the reasons behind their failure to appear and to ask for a continuance
(i.e., Lt. Franks) and inexplicable failure to call others (expert and lay witnesses that
defense counsel told the jury he would call). This prejudiced Petitioner both in the eyes
of the jury (the credibility of the Petitioner, his counsel and their theory of defense) and
in the presentation of the Petitioner’s case at trial.

By way of example, Petitioner’s counsel told the jury that Petitioner picked
Nicholas up from day care on December 4, 2009, and took him and Quito to the Urgent
Care center located across the street. Petitioner’s investigators had located and
interviewed both the doctor and nurse who were on duty that night and who were
ready, willing and able to testify to this fact. He could have reinforced and proven his
statements. However, the failure, by trial counsel, to call these witnesses was
prejudicial in that it allowed the State to make the improper argument and credibility
attack that Petitioner never picked up Nicholas. This was false but was allowed to be
received by the jury unchallenged by Petitioner’s counsel despite having access to
witnesses and documents to refute these false statements. This was not the product
of strategy but was objectively unreasonable.

J. Counsel was Ineffective Regarding the Guardianship Proceedings.

Petitioner incorporates pages 116-122 of the Memorandum of Points and
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Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as
though fully set forth herein. The Supreme Court of the United States has observed
that a counsel’s failure to conduct discovery may render his assistance constitutionally
deficient. See, Kimmelman v. Morrison, 477 U.S. 365, 385-86 (1986). When counsel
is made aware that a potential witness may provide testimony beneficial to the defense,

counsel’s failure to interview the potential witness in ineffective. Ramonez v. Berghuis,

490 F.3d 482, 489 (6™ Cir. 2007). “The failure to interview key defense witnesses is
objectively unreasonable” under Strickland.

In the instant case, during an ancillary Family Court proceeding about the
visitation and custody issues regarding the minor son of Petitioner and the decedent,
the GAL (Guardian Ad Litem) stood up in open court and said that she had interviewed
people who knew Petitioner and that they told her that they were surprised and
shocked at what happened and didn’t think he was even capable of the allegations
against him. This provided Petitioner with a real opportunity to use the civil discovery
process to find out what potential witnesses in the criminal case would testify to
without any risk to Petitioner. Trial defense counsel chose not to take advantage of
this opportunity. Nor did they interview these witnesses. This constituted ineffective
assistance of counsel.

The duty to investigate derives from counsel’s basic function, which is “‘to make
the adversarial testing process work in the particular case.” Kimmelman v. Morrison,
477 U.S. 365, 384, 106 S.Ct. 2574, 91 L.Ed.2d 305 {1986} (quoting Strickland, 466
U.S. at 690, 104 S.Ct. 2052). This duty includes the obligation to investigate all
witnesses who may have information concerning his or her client’s guilt or innocence.

Towns v. Smith, 395 F.3d 251, 258 (6™ Cir. 2005).

This is not a case where it is speculative as to what the nature of the evidence
Petitioner is claiming or if it existed. This was placed on the record of the Family Court
proceedings and was brought to the attention of Petitioner’s counsel by Petitioner with

the specific request that the information be discovered and that the persons with whom
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the GAL spoke, be interviewed for use in both discovery and at trial. It is clear that the
GAL interviewed Quito'? at some point in connection with the custody case involving
his brother Nicholas and her investigation into Petitioner. Quito’s statement to her and
all materials related to it, which were not privileged under Nevada law (NRS 432B.250),
were never provided to defense counsel and instead were shared only with the State,
and constitute another example of Brady material withheld from the defense.
Remember that there were substantial credibility and coercion issues relating to
Quito’s testimony. He had previously testified that he was told to lie by his
grandmother. Further, defense counsel did not continue his efforts to get this material
even after he had asked for it and the State had promised to provide it.

Considering that one of the arguments of the Petitioner is that the State’s
improper comments in their Closing Argument that “you would have expected more
witnesses” the failure of Petitioner’s trial counsel to interview and to call additional
witnesses who were known, but never pursued, was objectively unreasonable and
entitles Petitioner to a new trial.

Furthermore, Petitioner believes that the information, documents, and other
evidence gathered by the GAL were shared with the State and not turned over in
discovery to the defense, as the GAL’s law partner’s husband was working as a Deputy
District Attorney at the time. Therefore, Petitioner is requesting he be allowed to
conduct discovery on this issue to properly prepare and present it to the court.

K. Defense Counsel was Ineffective in His Trial Preparation Lessening

the Burden on the Prosecution.

As the Ninth Circuit has said, the failure to interview any of the witnesses that
the government planned to call to testify, means that counsel could not have known

how they would testify and what information he should try to elicit on cross-

“Similarly, the GAL also interviewed both Emeline and Lisa Eisenman, before
the criminal trial commenced, and their interviews and notes were never turned
over as well.
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examination or would otherwise need to present in response and is ineffective. Turner

v. Duncan, 158 F.3d 449, (C.A.9 {Cal.) 1998); See also United States v. Tucker, 716

F.2d 576, 583 (9™ Cir. 1983) (counsel cannot make “informed assessment” of a case
without ascertaining how government witnesses will testify).

“The relevant question is not whether counsel’s choices were strategic, but
whether they were reasonable.” Roe v. Flores-Ortega, 528 U.S. 470, 481, 120 S.Ct.
1029, 145 L.Ed.2d 985 (2000); accord Clinkscale v. Carter, 375 F.3d 430, 443 (6" Cir.

2004). A purportedly strategic decision is not objectively reasonable “when the

attorney has failed to investigate his options and make a reasonable choice between

them.” Horton v. Zant, 941 F.2d 1449, 1462 (11" Cir. 1991) (cited in Combs v. Coyle,
205 F.3d 269, 288 (6th Cir. 2000)).
The Sixth, Seventh and Ninth Circuits have held that the selection of a defense

strategy, before a “reasonable” investigation, is ineffective. Richey v. Mitchell, 395 F.2d

660, 685 (6™ Cir. 2005), rev’d on other grounds, Bradshaw v. Richey, 546 U.S. 74, 126

S.Ct. 602, 163 L.Ed.2d 407 (2005); White v. Godinez, 301 F.3d 796. 801, 803 (7™ Cir.
2002}); Rios v. Rocha, 299 F.3d 796, 805-07 (9™ Cir. 2002). Although this court has

yet to consider to what extent counsel must investigate before selecting a trial strategy,
we have held that “[i|nformed evaluation of potential defense to criminal charges and
meaningful discussion with one’s client of the realities of his case are cornerstones of
effective assistance of counsel.” Washington v. Watkins, 655 F.2d 1346, 1355 (5" Cir.
1981) (citing Gaines v. Hopper, 575 F.2d 1147, 1149-50 (5" Cir. 1978)).

None of this was done in Petitioner’s case, since he was apparently not aware of
his experts’ opinions prior to trial, the State’s witnesses, or the viability of the defense
of self-defense. This was further compounded by the following:

1. The medical records and testimony of Dr. Sessions.

Petitioner incorporates pages 122-105 of the Memorandum of Points and

Authorities in Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) as

though fully set forth herein. Respondent cannot and has not refuted the claim that
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